
Tuesday, May 31, 2022 AGENDA Page 1 

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA & RULES COMMITTEE 

SPECIAL MEETING 

TUESDAY, MAY 31, 2022 

2:30 P.M. 

Committee Members:  

Mayor Jesse Arreguin, Councilmembers Sophie Hahn and Susan Wengraf 

Alternate: Councilmember Kate Harrison 

PUBLIC ADVISORY:  THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH 
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE  

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e) and the state declared emergency, this 
meeting will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference. The 
COVID-19 state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet 
safely in person and presents imminent risks to the health of the attendees. Therefore, no 
physical meeting location will be available. 

To access the meeting remotely using the internet: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or 

Android device: Use URL https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89809254894.  If you do not wish for your 
name to appear on the screen, then use the drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename 
yourself to be anonymous. To request to speak, use the “raise hand” icon on the screen. 

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and Enter Meeting ID:  

898 0925 4894. If you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, press 
*9 and wait to be recognized by the Chair.

Written communications submitted by mail or e-mail to the Agenda & Rules Committee by 5:00 
p.m. the Friday before the Committee meeting will be distributed to the members of the Committee
in advance of the meeting and retained as part of the official record.  City offices are currently
closed and cannot accept written communications in person.

Page 1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89809254894


   

 
Tuesday, May 31, 2022 AGENDA Page 2 

AGENDA 
 

Roll Call 

Public Comment 
 

Review of Agendas 

1. Approval of Minutes: May 16, 2022 

2. Review and Approve Draft Agenda: 

a. 6/14/22 – 6:00 p.m. Regular City Council Meeting 

3. Selection of Item for the Berkeley Considers Online Engagement Portal 

4. Adjournments In Memory 
 

Scheduling 

5. Council Worksessions Schedule 

6. Council Referrals to Agenda Committee for Scheduling 

7. Land Use Calendar 
 

Referred Items for Review 
 

8. Discussion Regarding Impact of COVID-19 (novel coronavirus) on Meetings 
of Legislative Bodies 

 
9. 

 
Preliminary Analysis of Return to In-Person Meetings of City Legislative 
Bodies 

  

Unscheduled Items 
 

10. Discussion Regarding Design and Strengthening of Policy Committee 
Process and Structure (Including Budget Referrals) 

  
11. Strengthening and Supporting City Commissions: Guidance on the 

Development of Legislative Proposals 
  
  

Items for Future Agendas 

• Discussion of items to be added to future agendas 
 
 

Page 2



   

 
Tuesday, May 31, 2022 AGENDA Page 3 

Adjournment – Next Meeting Monday, June 13, 2022 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

 
Additional items may be added to the draft agenda per Council Rules of 
Procedure. 

Rules of Procedure as adopted by Council resolution, Article III, C3c - Agenda - Submission of Time Critical 
Items 

Time Critical Items.  A Time Critical item is defined as a matter that is considered urgent by the sponsor 
and that has a deadline for action that is prior to the next meeting of the Council and for which a report 
prepared by the City Manager, Auditor, Mayor or council member is received by the City Clerk after 
established deadlines and is not included on the Agenda Committee’s published agenda.   

If the Agenda Committee finds the matter to meet the definition of Time Critical, the Agenda Committee 
may place the matter on the Agenda on either the Consent or Action Calendar.  

The City Clerk shall not accept any item past the adjournment of the Agenda Committee meeting for which 
the agenda that the item is requested to appear on has been approved. 

Written communications addressed to the Agenda Committee and submitted to the City Clerk Department 
by 5:00 p.m. the Friday before the Committee meeting, will be distributed to the Committee prior to the 
meeting.   

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953 and 
applicable Executive Orders as issued by the Governor that are currently in effect.  Members of the City 
Council who are not members of the standing committee may attend a standing committee meeting even 
if it results in a quorum being present, provided that the non-members only act as observers and do not 
participate in the meeting. If only one member of the Council who is not a member of the committee is 
present for the meeting, the member may participate in the meeting because less than a quorum of the 
full Council is present. Any member of the public may attend this meeting.  Questions regarding this 
matter may be addressed to Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900. 
 

COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 
To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including 
auxiliary aids or services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at (510) 981-6418 
(V) or (510) 981-6347 (TDD) at least three business days before the meeting date.  

* * * 
I hereby certify that the agenda for this special meeting of the Berkeley City Council was posted at the 
display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134 Martin Luther King 
Jr. Way, as well as on the City’s website, on Thursday, May 26, 2022. 

 
Mark Numainville, City Clerk 
 
 

 
Communications 
Communications submitted to City Council Policy Committees are on file in the City Clerk Department at 
2180 Milvia Street, 1st Floor, Berkeley, CA, and are available upon request by contacting the City Clerk 
Department at (510) 981-6908 or policycommittee@cityofberkeley.info. 

Page 3

mailto:policycommittee@cityofberkeley.info


Page 4



Monday, May 16, 2022 MINUTES Page 1 

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA & RULES COMMITTEE 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

MONDAY, MAY 16, 2022 

2:30 P.M. 

Committee Members:  

Mayor Jesse Arreguin, Councilmembers Sophie Hahn and Susan Wengraf 

Alternate: Councilmember Kate Harrison 

PUBLIC ADVISORY:  THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH 
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE  

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e) and the state declared emergency, this 
meeting will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference. The 
COVID-19 state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet 
safely in person and presents imminent risks to the health of the attendees. Therefore, no 
physical meeting location will be available. 

To access the meeting remotely using the internet: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or 

Android device: Use URL https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86363667602.  If you do not wish for your 
name to appear on the screen, then use the drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename 
yourself to be anonymous. To request to speak, use the “raise hand” icon on the screen. 

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and Enter Meeting ID:  

863 6366 7602. If you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, press 
*9 and wait to be recognized by the Chair.

Written communications submitted by mail or e-mail to the Agenda & Rules Committee by 5:00 
p.m. the Friday before the Committee meeting will be distributed to the members of the Committee
in advance of the meeting and retained as part of the official record.  City offices are currently
closed and cannot accept written communications in person.

01

Page 5

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86363667602


   

 
Monday, May 16, 2022 MINUTES Page 2 

Roll Call: 2:32 p.m. All present (Harrison present for Arreguin) 

Public Comment – 3 speakers 
 

Review of Agendas 

1. Approval of Minutes: May 9, 2022 
Action: (M/S/C) to approve the minutes of May 9, 2022. 
Vote: Ayes – Hahn, Wengraf; Noes – None; Abstain – Harrison; Absent – None. 

2. Review and Approve Draft Agenda: 

a. 5/31/22 – 6:00 p.m. Regular City Council Meeting 
Action: (M/S/C) to approve the agenda of May 31, 2022 with the changes noted 
below. 
• Item 17 Grant Funds (City Manager) – Correction to dollar amount in recommendation 

• Item 31 Wellness (Harrison) – Councilmember Hahn added as a co-sponsor 

• Item 33 SB 1076 (Wengraf) – Councilmember Hahn added as a co-sponsor 

• Item 34 Electric Bikes (Robinson) – Councilmember Hahn added as a co-sponsor; requested 
correction to fiscal year reference 

• Item 39 Small Businesses (Arreguin) – Councilmembers Robinson, Hahn, and Harrison 
added as co-sponsors; Moved to Consent Calendar 

• Item 40 Racial Equity (Taplin) – Councilmember Hahn added as a co-sponsor; Revised item 
submitted; Referred to HLEEC Committee 

 
Order of Action Calendar 
Item 35 Fees 
Item 36 Ballot Measures 
Item 37 Budget 
Item 38 Bond Expenditures 
  

Vote: All Ayes. 

3. Selection of Item for the Berkeley Considers Online Engagement Portal 
- None selected 

4. Adjournments In Memory – None  
 

Scheduling 

5. Council Worksessions Schedule – received and filed 

6. Council Referrals to Agenda Committee for Scheduling – received and filed 

7. Land Use Calendar – received and filed
 

 
 
 
 

Page 6



   

 
Monday, May 16, 2022 MINUTES Page 3 

Referred Items for Review 
 

8. Discussion Regarding Impact of COVID-19 (novel coronavirus) on Meetings 
of Legislative Bodies 
 
Action: 4 speakers. No action taken. 

 
9. 

 
Preliminary Analysis of Return to In-Person Meetings of City Legislative 
Bodies 
 
Action: 3 speakers. Discussion of first hybrid regular meeting and potential 
changes to policies for future hybrid meetings. 

  

Unscheduled Items 
 

10. Discussion Regarding Design and Strengthening of Policy Committee 
Process and Structure (Including Budget Referrals) 

  
11. Strengthening and Supporting City Commissions: Guidance on the 

Development of Legislative Proposals 
  
  

Items for Future Agendas 

• None 
 
Adjournment  

 

Action: (M/S/C) to adjourn the meeting. 
 Vote: All Ayes. 
 
  Adjourned at 3:50 p.m. 
 

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct record of the Agenda & Rules 
Committee meeting held on May 16, 2022. 
 
________________________ 
Mark Numainville, City Clerk 
 
 

 
Communications 
Communications submitted to City Council Policy Committees are on file in the City Clerk Department at 
2180 Milvia Street, 1st Floor, Berkeley, CA, and are available upon request by contacting the City Clerk 
Department at (510) 981-6908 or policycommittee@cityofberkeley.info. 

Page 7

mailto:policycommittee@cityofberkeley.info


Page 8



Tuesday, June 14, 2022 DRAFT AGENDA Page 1 

D R AF T  AG E N D A 

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Tuesday, June 14, 2022 
6:00 PM 

SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD ROOM - 1231 ADDISON STREET, BERKELEY, CA 94702 

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR 

Councilmembers: 

DISTRICT 1 – RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 – SOPHIE HAHN 
DISTRICT 2 – TERRY TAPLIN  DISTRICT 6 – SUSAN WENGRAF 
DISTRICT 3 – BEN BARTLETT  DISTRICT 7 – RIGEL ROBINSON 
DISTRICT 4 – KATE HARRISON  DISTRICT 8 – LORI DROSTE 

PUBLIC ADVISORY:  THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED IN A HYBRID MODEL WITH BOTH IN-PERSON 
ATTENDANCE AND VIRTUAL PARTICIPATION 

Proof of up-to-date COVID-19 vaccination or verified negative COVID-19 test is required for in-person attendance.  
In-person attendees are required to wear a mask that covers their nose and mouth for the duration of the meeting. 
If you are feeling sick, please do not attend in-person. 

Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable B-TV (Channel 33) and via internet 
accessible video stream at http://berkeley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish_id=1244. 

To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device:  Please use this URL 
<<INSERT URL HERE>>.  If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen, then use the drop down 
menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be anonymous.  To request to speak, use the “raise hand” icon 
by rolling over the bottom of the screen.  

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and enter Meeting ID: <<INSERT 
MEETING ID HERE>>. If you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and 
wait to be recognized by the Chair.  

Please be mindful that the meeting will be recorded and all rules of procedure and decorum apply for in-person 
attendees and those participating by teleconference or videoconference. 

To submit a written communication for the City Council’s consideration and inclusion in the public record, email 
council@cityofberkeley.info. 

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953.  Any 
member of the public may attend this meeting.  Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Mark 
Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900. The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the 
Agenda. Meetings will adjourn at 11:00 p.m. - any items outstanding at that time will be carried over to a date/time 
to be specified. 

02a

Page 9

http://berkeley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish_id=1244
mailto:council@cityofberkeley.info


   

 

Tuesday, June 14, 2022 DRAFT AGENDA Page 2 

 

Preliminary Matters 

Roll Call:  

Ceremonial Matters: In addition to those items listed on the agenda, the Mayor may add additional 

ceremonial matters. 

1.  Presentation: Alameda County Affordable Housing Portal 

City Manager Comments:  The City Manager may make announcements or provide information to 

the City Council in the form of an oral report.  The Council will not take action on such items but may 
request the City Manager place a report on a future agenda for discussion. 

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters: Persons will be selected to address matters not on 

the Council agenda.  If five or fewer persons wish to speak, each person selected will be allotted two 
minutes each.  If more than five persons wish to speak, up to ten persons will be selected to address 
matters not on the Council agenda and each person selected will be allotted one minute each. Persons 
attending the meeting in-person and wishing to address the Council on matters not on the Council 
agenda during the initial ten-minute period for such comment, must submit a speaker card to the City 
Clerk in person at the meeting location and prior to commencement of that meeting. The remainder of the 
speakers wishing to address the Council on non-agenda items will be heard at the end of the agenda. 

 
Consent Calendar 

 The Council will first determine whether to move items on the agenda for “Action” or “Information” to the 
“Consent Calendar”, or move “Consent Calendar” items to “Action.” Three members of the City Council 
must agree to pull an item from the Consent Calendar for it to move to Action. Items that remain on the 
“Consent Calendar” are voted on in one motion as a group. “Information” items are not discussed or acted 
upon at the Council meeting unless they are moved to “Action” or “Consent”. 

No additional items can be moved onto the Consent Calendar once public comment has commenced. At 
any time during, or immediately after, public comment on Information and Consent items, any 
Councilmember may move any Information or Consent item to “Action.” Following this, the Council will 
vote on the items remaining on the Consent Calendar in one motion.  

For items moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons 
who spoke on the item during the Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again at the time 
the matter is taken up during the Action Calendar. 

Public Comment on Consent Calendar and Information Items Only: The Council will 

take public comment on any items that are either on the amended Consent Calendar or the Information 
Calendar.  Speakers will be entitled to two minutes each to speak in opposition to or support of Consent 
Calendar and Information Items.  A speaker may only speak once during the period for public comment 
on Consent Calendar and Information items. 

Additional information regarding public comment by City of Berkeley employees and interns: Employees 
and interns of the City of Berkeley, although not required, are encouraged to identify themselves as such, 
the department in which they work and state whether they are speaking as an individual or in their official 
capacity when addressing the Council in open session or workshops. 

 
 
 

 

Page 10



   

Consent Calendar 

Tuesday, June 14, 2022 DRAFT AGENDA Page 3 

 

1. Ordinance authorizing an amendment to the contract between the City Council 
of the City of Berkeley and the Board of Administration of the California Public 
Employees’ Retirement System 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,813-N.S. amending 
the City’s contract with CalPERS to effectuate changes to the cost sharing 
agreement between the City and PEPRA members of Service Employee 
International Union, Local 1021 Maintenance and Clerical (SEIU MC), Public 
Employees Union Local 1 (Local 1), Community Services & Part-Time Recreation 
Leaders Associations Local 1021 (SEIU CSU/PTRLA), and the Unrepresented 
Employees Group. 
First Reading Vote: Ayes – Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Wengraf, 
Robinson, Droste, Arreguin; Noes – None; Abstain – None; Absent – Hahn.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Donald E. Ellison, Human Resources, (510) 981-6800 

 

2. Placing a Measure on the November 8, 2022 Ballot Related to Housing for 
Persons of Low-Income 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation:  
1. Adopt a Resolution submitting a measure related to housing for persons of low-
income to a vote of the electors at the November 8, 2022 General Municipal Election. 
2. Designate, by motion, specific members of the Council to file ballot measure 
arguments on this measure as provided for in Elections Code Section 9282.  
Financial Implications: No direct fiscal impacts 
Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900 

 

3. Donation to the Animal Shelter from the U.C. Davis Koret Shelter Medicine 
Program 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution accepting a grant from the U.C. Davis Koret 
Shelter Medicine Program to Animal Care Services in the sum of $5,000.  
Financial Implications: Animal Services Donation Fund - $5,000 (Donation) 
Contact: Peter Radu, City Manager's Office, (510) 981-7000 

 

4. Formal Bid Solicitations and Request for Proposals Scheduled for Possible 
Issuance After Council Approval on June 14, 2022 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Approve the request for proposals or invitation for bids (attached 
to staff report) that will be, or are planned to be, issued upon final approval by the 
requesting department or division.  All contracts over the City Manager’s threshold 
will be returned to Council for final approval.  
Financial Implications: Various Funds - $270,000 
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300 

 

Page 11



   

Consent Calendar 

Tuesday, June 14, 2022 DRAFT AGENDA Page 4 

5. Temporary Appropriations FY 2023 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing a temporary appropriation in the 
sum of $50,000,000 to cover payroll and other expenses from July 1, 2022, until the 
effective date of the FY 2023 Annual Appropriations Ordinance.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300 

 

6. FY 2023 Tax Rate: Fund the Debt Service on the Street and Watershed 
Improvements General Obligation Bonds (Measure M, November 2012 Election) 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance setting the FY 2023 tax rate 
funding the debt service on the Street and Integrated Watershed Improvements 
General Obligation Bonds (Measure M, November 2012) at 0.0075%.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300 

 

7. FY 2023 Tax Rate: Fund Debt Service on Neighborhood Branch Library 
Improvements Project General Obligation Bonds (Measure FF, November 2008 
Election) 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance setting the FY 2023 tax rate 
for funding the debt service on the Neighborhood Branch Library Improvements 
Project General Obligation Bonds (Measure FF, November 2008 Election) at 
0.0058%.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300 

 

8. FY 2023 Tax Rate: Fund Debt Service on 2015 Refunding General Obligation 
Bonds (Measures G, S & I) 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance setting the FY 2023 tax rate 
funding the debt service on the 2015 consolidation of Measures G, S and I (General 
Obligation Bonds - Elections of 1992, 1996 and 2002) at 0.0130%.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300 

 

9. FY 2023 Tax Rate: Fund the Debt Service on the Affordable Housing General 
Obligation Bonds (Measure O, November 2018 Election) 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance setting the FY 2023 tax rate 
funding the debt service on the Affordable Housing General Obligation Bonds 
(Measure O, November 2018) at 0.0200%.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300 

 

Page 12



   

Consent Calendar 

Tuesday, June 14, 2022 DRAFT AGENDA Page 5 

10. FY 2023 Tax Rate: Business License Tax on Large Non-Profits 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance setting the FY 2023 tax rate 
for Business License Tax on large non-profits at $0.7573 (75.73 cents) per square 
foot of improvements.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300 

 

11. FY 2023 Tax Rate: Fund the Provision of Emergency Medical Services 
(Paramedic Tax) 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance setting the FY 2023 tax rate 
for funding the provision of emergency medical services to Berkeley residents at 
$0.0433 (4.33 cents) per square foot of improvements.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300 

 

12. FY 2023 Tax Rate: Fund Firefighting, Emergency Medical Response and 
Wildfire Prevention (Measure FF) 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance setting the FY 2023 tax rate 
for funding Firefighting, Emergency Medical Response and Wildfire Prevention 
(Measure FF) in the City of Berkeley at the annual tax rate of $0.1126 (11.26 cents) 
per square foot of improvements.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300 

 

13. FY 2023 Tax Rate: Fund the Maintenance of Parks, City Trees and Landscaping 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance setting the FY 2023 tax rate 
for funding all improvements for the maintenance of parks, City trees, and 
landscaping in the City of Berkeley at $0.2039 (20.39 cents) per square foot of 
improvements.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300 

 

14. FY 2023 Tax Rate: Fund the Debt Service on the Infrastructure and Facilities 
General Obligation Bonds (Measure T1, November 2016 Election) 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance setting the FY 2023 tax rate 
funding the debt service on the Infrastructure and Facilities Improvements General 
Obligation Bonds (Measure T1, November 2016) at 0.0160%.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300 

 

Page 13



   

Consent Calendar 

Tuesday, June 14, 2022 DRAFT AGENDA Page 6 

15. FY 2023 Tax Rate: Fund Emergency Services for the Severely Disabled 
(Measure E) 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance setting the FY 2023 tax rate 
for funding the provision of emergency services for the disabled at $0.01932 (1.932 
cents) per square foot of improvements.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300 

 

16. Designate the Line of Succession for the Director of Emergency Services 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the designated line of succession 
to the position of Director of Emergency Services in the event of an emergency, and 
rescinding Resolution No. 69,919-N.S.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Abe Roman, Fire, (510) 981-3473 

 

17. St. Paul Terrace Housing Trust Fund Reservation 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution: 1. Reserving $8,551,040 in Housing Trust 
Funds for Community Housing Development Corporation’s St. Paul Terrace (2024 
Ashby) affordable housing development, conditioned on the project obtaining 
planning entitlements within 24 months; and 2. Authorizing the City Manager or her 
designee to execute all original or amended documents or agreements to effectuate 
these actions.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400 

 

18. Classification and Salary: Senior Economic Development Project Coordinator 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution establishing the Senior Economic 
Development Coordinator classification (Local 1) with a monthly stepped salary 
range of $11,219.88 to $13,775.00 effective June 15, 2022.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Donald E. Ellison, Human Resources, (510) 981-6800 

 

Page 14



   

Consent Calendar 

Tuesday, June 14, 2022 DRAFT AGENDA Page 7 

19. Contract No. 8392 Amendment: Innovative Claim Solutions (ICS) for claims 
administration of the City’s Workers’ Compensation Program 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an 
amendment to extend Contract No. 8392 with Innovative Claims Solutions (ICS) to 
provide third-party claims administrative services, Medicare, Medicaid, and SCHIP 
Extension Act (MMSEA) Section 111 Mandatory Reporting to the Centers for 
Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS), for an additional amount of $598,560 for July 
1, 2022 through June 30, 2023.  
Financial Implications: Workers’ Compensation Self-Insurance Fund - $598,560 
Contact: Donald E. Ellison, Human Resources, (510) 981-6800 

 

20. Contract: Axon Enterprise, Incorporated for Body Worn Cameras, Storage and 
Software 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a 
Contract with Axon Enterprise, Incorporated to provide body worn cameras, 
equipment, software, and services for an amount not to exceed $1,115,000 over the 
next five years through Fiscal Year 2027.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Jennifer Louis, Police, (510) 981-5900 

 

21. Commission Reorganization: Creating the Transportation and Infrastructure 
Commission 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution: rescinding Resolution No. 55,751-N.S. 
which created the Transportation Commission, rescinding Resolution No. 55,750-
N.S. which created the Public Works Commission, and establishing the 
Transportation and Infrastructure Commission.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300 

 

22. Final Map of Tract 8621: 1169-1173 Hearst Avenue 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the final map of Tract Map 8621, a 
five (5) unit residential condominium project consisting of a single-family dwelling unit 
and two duplexes at 1169-1173 Hearst Avenue.  
Financial Implications: See report. 
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300 

 

23. Call for Immediate Ukraine Ceasefire 
From: Peace and Justice Commission 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution Urging a Ceasefire between Ukraine and 
Russia. 
Financial Implications: Staff time 
Contact: Okeya Vance-Dozier, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-7100 

Page 15



   

   

Council Consent Items 

Tuesday, June 14, 2022 DRAFT AGENDA Page 8 

 

24. Support for SB 1389: Low-Level Vehicle Infractions 
From: Councilmember Robinson (Author) 
Recommendation: Send a letter to Senator Steven Bradford, Senator Nancy 
Skinner, and Assemblymember Buffy Wicks in support of Senate Bill 1389, which 
would prohibit peace officers from initiating traffic stops for certain low-level 
infractions unless there is a separate, independent basis to initiate the stop.  
Financial Implications: Staff time 
Contact: Rigel Robinson, Councilmember, District 7, (510) 981-7170 

 

Action Calendar 
 The public may comment on each item listed on the agenda for action as the item is taken up. For items 

moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons who spoke on 
the item during the Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again at the time the matter is 
taken up during the Action Calendar. 

The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak use the "raise hand" function to determine 
the number of persons interested in speaking at that time. Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two 
minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the 
public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. Speakers are permitted to yield their time to 
one other speaker, however no one speaker shall have more than four minutes. The Presiding Officer may, 
with the consent of persons representing both sides of an issue, allocate a block of time to each side to 
present their issue. 

Action items may be reordered at the discretion of the Chair with the consent of Council. 

 

Action Calendar – Public Hearings 
 Staff shall introduce the public hearing item and present their comments. This is followed by five-minute 

presentations each by the appellant and applicant. The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing 
to speak use the "raise hand" function to be recognized and to determine the number of persons interested 
in speaking at that time. 

Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in 
speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. 
The Presiding Officer may with the consent of persons representing both sides of an issue allocate a block 
of time to each side to present their issue. 

Each member of the City Council shall verbally disclose all ex parte contacts concerning the subject of the 
hearing. Councilmembers shall also submit a report of such contacts in writing prior to the commencement 
of the hearing. Written reports shall be available for public review in the office of the City Clerk. 

 

25. FY 2023 and FY 2024 Proposed Budget Public Hearing #2 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Conduct Public Hearing #2 on the FY 2023 and FY 2024 
Proposed Budget.  
Financial Implications: See FY 2023 and FY 2024 Proposed Biennial Budget 
Contact: Sharon Friedrichsen, Budget Manager, (510) 981-7000 

  

 

Page 16



   
Action Calendar – Old Business 

Tuesday, June 14, 2022 DRAFT AGENDA Page 9 

26. Police Equipment & Community Safety Ordinance Impact Statements, 
Associated Equipment Policies and Annual Equipment Use Report (Continued 
from May 10, 2022) 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the Controlled Equipment Impact 
Statements, Associated Equipment Use Policies and Equipment.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Jennifer Louis, Police, (510) 981-5900 

 

Action Calendar – New Business 
 

27. Parking Enforcement of Existing Parking Code in Fire Zones 2 & 3 (Reviewed by 
the Public Safety Policy Committee) 
From: Disaster and Fire Safety Commission 
Recommendation: The Disaster and Fire Safety Commission (DFSC) recommends 
that Council direct the Berkeley Police Department to enforce existing Berkeley 
Municipal Code in all Fire Zones. 
Policy Committee Recommendation: Forward the item to the City Council with a 
qualified positive recommendation amending the item to a budget referral for the FY 
23 & FY 24 budget process to hire an additional dedicated parking officer for fire 
zones 2 & 3. 
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Keith May, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-3473 

 

28. Recommendation that the City Council revise Resolution No. 69,917 regarding 
procurement, sales and service of sugar-sweetened beverages. 
From: Sugar Sweetened Beverage Product Panel of Experts 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution to amend Resolution No. 69,917 in response 
to the request of the City Council on June 1st, 2021, in Action Item #18A, the Sugar 
Sweetened Beverage Product Panel of Experts (SSBPPE) has considered “how to 
regulate sugar sweetened beverages at events held on City of Berkeley Property 
hosted by non-City entities who receive City of Berkeley funds.”  The Commission 
recommends that the Berkeley City Council revise the requirement for events that 
receive City of Berkeley funding to mandate that these events also comply with the 
intent of Resolution No. 69,917.  
The City Council has the opportunity to make the Resolution more impactful by 
banning the sale and service of sugary drinks at City sponsored events.  This will be 
a powerful message to community residents and visitors who attend events such as 
the Book Festival, Kite Festival, Juneteenth festival and Chocolate and Chalk Art 
Festival to name a few.  
Financial Implications: See Report 
Contact: Roberto Terrones, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-5400 

  

 

Page 17



   
Information Reports 

Tuesday, June 14, 2022 DRAFT AGENDA Page 10 

29. City Council Short Term Referral Process – Quarterly Update 
From: City Manager 
Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900 

 

30. Results of General Obligation Bonds: $40,000,000 City of Berkeley 2022 
General Obligations Bonds, Series B (2018 Election Measure O: Affordable 
Housing) (Federally Taxable) 
From: City Manager 
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300 

 

31. Update on the Implementation of Fair and Impartial Policing Task Force 
Recommendations 
From: City Manager 
Contact: Jennifer Louis, Police, (510) 981-5900 

 

32. City Auditor’s Office 2021 Peer Review Results 
From: Auditor 
Contact: Jenny Wong, Auditor, (510) 981-6750 

 

Public Comment – Items Not Listed on the Agenda 

Adjournment 

NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: If you object to a decision by the City Council to 
approve or deny a use permit or variance for a project the following requirements and restrictions apply:  
1) No lawsuit challenging a City decision to deny (Code Civ. Proc. §1094.6(b)) or approve (Gov. Code 
65009(c)(5)) a use permit or variance may be filed more than 90 days after the date the Notice of 
Decision of the action of the City Council is mailed. Any lawsuit not filed within that 90-day period will be 
barred.  2) In any lawsuit that may be filed against a City Council decision to approve or deny a use 
permit or variance, the issues and evidence will be limited to those raised by you or someone else, orally 
or in writing, at a public hearing or prior to the close of the last public hearing on the project. 
 

Archived indexed video streams are available at: 
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/city-council/city-council-agendas. 

Channel 33 rebroadcasts the following Wednesday at 9:00 a.m. and Sunday at 9:00 a.m. 
 

Communications to the City Council are public record and will become part of the City’s electronic 
records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: e-mail addresses, names, 
addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any communication 
to the City Council, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or 
any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service 
to the City Clerk Department at 2180 Milvia Street. If you do not want your contact information included in 
the public record, please do not include that information in your communication. Please contact the City 
Clerk Department for further information. 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 
will be made available for public inspection at the public counter at the City Clerk Department located on 
the first floor of City Hall located at 2180 Milvia Street as well as posted on the City's website at 
https://berkeleyca.gov/. 

Page 18

https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/city-council/city-council-agendas
https://berkeleyca.gov/


   
   

 

Tuesday, June 14, 2022 DRAFT AGENDA Page 11 

Agendas and agenda reports may be accessed via the Internet at: 
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/city-council/city-council-agendas 

and may be read at reference desks at the following locations: 

City Clerk Department - 2180 Milvia Street, First Floor 
Tel:  510-981-6900, TDD:  510-981-6903, Fax:  510-981-6901 

Email:  clerk@cityofberkeley.info 
 

Libraries: Main – 2090 Kittredge Street, 
Claremont Branch – 2940 Benvenue, West Branch – 1125 University, 

North Branch – 1170 The Alameda, South Branch – 1901 Russell 

COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 
This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location.  
To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or 
services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at (510) 981-6418 (V) or (510) 981-6347 (TDD) 
at least three business days before the meeting date. 
 
Attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive to various scents, 
whether natural or manufactured, in products and materials.  Please help the City respect these needs. 
 

 

Captioning services are provided at the meeting, on B-TV, and on the Internet.  In addition, assisted 
listening devices for the hearing impaired are available from the City Clerk prior to the meeting, and are to 
be returned before the end of the meeting. 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

 

Page 19

https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/city-council/city-council-agendas


Page 20



Peace and Justice 
Commission

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

CONSENT CALENDAR
June 14, 2022

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Peace and Justice Commission

Submitted by: George Lippman, Chairperson, Peace and Justice Commission

Subject: Call for Immediate Ukraine Ceasefire

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt a Resolution Urging a Ceasefire between Ukraine and Russia.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
Minimal impact to staff time.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
Since 24 February 2022, tens of thousands of Ukrainian civilians – children, mothers, 
fathers, siblings, grandparents, and other human beings – ave been killed by Russian 
military forces’ bombing and shelling of apartment buildings, private residences, 
hospitals including a maternity hospital, children’s schools and playgrounds, and other 
non-military locations in cities throughout the sovereign state of Ukraine.

Appeals to Russia and to its President Vladimir Putin from UN Secretary-General 
António Guterres and member states of the United Nations for an immediate cease-fire 
have gone unheeded.

At its regular meeting of April 4, 2022, the Peace and Justice Commission unanimously 
proposed the attached resolution for the City Council.

M/S/C: (Maran/Morizawa)

Ayes: Bohn, Gussman, Jacqulin, Lee, Lippman, Maran, Morizawa, Rodriguez

Noes: None

Abstain: None

Absent:  Leon-Maldonado

Page 1 of 4 02a.23

Page 21

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager


Call for Immediate Ceasefire between Ukraine and Russia CONSENT CALENDAR
June 14, 2022

Page 2

BACKGROUND
On February 22, 2022, the Berkeley City Council adopted a resolution entitled “Support 
of Ukraine, Continued Diplomacy, and Adherence to Constitutional Procedure With 
Respect to Armed Conflict Amidst Ongoing Tensions,” standing with Ukraine and 
affirming that the territorial integrity of a state cannot be changed by force; and 
furthermore, “that in resolving tensions, the U.S. and its allies must vigorously pursue all 
potential diplomatic solutions to the crisis and that any last resort move towards armed 
conflict must be carefully debated and declared by the United States Congress.”1 

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
War is among the most catastrophic causes of environmental degradation and climate 
change.  An article by the Atlantic Council states, “At a time when humans are racing 
against the clock to prevent irreparable damage to the planet over the next one to two 
decades, contending with conflict-driven carbon emissions on top of already massive 
human-sourced emissions is unbearable.”2

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
The United Nations was created after World War II to end the “scourge of war,” to 
achieve international co-operation in solving international problems of a … humanitarian 
character…,” and to “be a centre for harmonizing the actions of nations in the 
attainment of these common ends.” People around the world rely on, and must urge the 
United Nations to lead in the peaceful resolution of international conflict.”

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
None

CITY MANAGER
The City Manager takes no position on this recommendation.

CONTACT PERSON
Okeya Vance-Dozier, Commission Secretary, City Manager’s Office, (510) 684-0503

Attachments: 
1: Resolution 

1 https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2022/02_Feb/Documents/2022-02-22_Urgent_Item_-
_Ukraine.aspx
2 “The Atlantic Council is an American think tank in the field of international affairs, favoring Atlanticism, 
founded in 1961.” Ariel Ezrahi, March 25, 2022, https://www.atlanticcouncil.org/blogs/menasource/the-
ukraine-crisis-is-a-reminder-of-why-conflict-driven-carbon-emissions-matter-in-mena-and-beyond/

Page 2 of 4

Page 22

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2022/02_Feb/Documents/2022-02-22_Urgent_Item_-_Ukraine.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2022/02_Feb/Documents/2022-02-22_Urgent_Item_-_Ukraine.aspx


RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

Call for Immediate Ukraine Ceasefire

WHEREAS, the Peace and Justice Commission advises the City Council and the BUSD 
on all matters relating to the City of Berkeley's role in issues of peace and social justice 
(Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) Chapter 3.68.070); and

WHEREAS, since 24 February 2022, tens of thousands of Ukrainian civilians – children, 
mothers, fathers, siblings, grandparents, and other human beings – have been killed by 
Russian military forces’ bombing and shelling of apartment buildings, private 
residences, hospitals including a maternity hospital, children’s schools and playgrounds, 
and other non-military locations in cities throughout the sovereign state of Ukraine; and

WHEREAS, appeals to Russia and to its President Vladimir Putin from UN Secretary-
General António Guterres and member states of the United Nations for an immediate 
cease-fire have gone unheeded; and

WHEREAS, the United Nations Charter, in force since 24 October 1945 and resulting 
from the entirely voluntary and wholly legally-binding ratification of the Charter by 193 
sovereign states, declares: 

“Chapter 1 PURPOSES AND PRINCIPLES…

(The Purposes of the United Nations are: …)

Article 1 (3) To achieve international co-operation in solving international 
problems of a … humanitarian character…”; and

“Article 1 (4) To be a centre for harmonizing the actions of nations in the 
attainment of these common ends.”

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that we 
hereby call upon the United Nations Secretary-General to offer the UN’s good offices to 
the government of Ukraine and the government of the Russian Federation for the 
purposes of

1. declaring an immediate cease-fire, and
2. concurrently convening peace negotiations for a permanent end to armed 

hostilities.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that copies of this resolution be sent to United Nations 
Secretary-General António Guterres, Secretary of State Antony Blinken, US 
Ambassador to the United Nations Linda Thomas-Greenfield, Senator Dianne Feinstein, 

Page 3 of 4

Page 23



Call for Immediate Ceasefire between Ukraine and Russia CONSENT CALENDAR
June 14, 2022

Page 4

Senator Alex Padilla, and Congresswoman Barbara Lee (current Congressional 
Representative to the UN General Assembly). 

Page 4 of 4

Page 24



2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7170 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903
E-Mail: RRobinson@cityofberkeley.info

CONSENT CALENDAR
June 14, 2022

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Councilmember Rigel Robinson 

Subject: Support for SB 1389: Low-Level Vehicle Infractions

RECOMMENDATION
Send a letter to Senator Steven Bradford, Senator Nancy Skinner, and 
Assemblymember Buffy Wicks in support of Senate Bill 1389, which would prohibit 
peace officers from initiating traffic stops for certain low-level infractions unless there is 
a separate, independent basis to initiate the stop.

BACKGROUND
SB 1389, introduced by Senator Bradford, would amend the California Vehicle Code to 
state that “a peace officer shall not initiate a motor vehicle stop for a low-level infraction 
unless there is a separate, independent basis to initiate the motor vehicle stop.” Low-
level infractions are defined as any of the following:

 A violation related to the registration of a vehicle or vehicle equipment or the
operation of a bicycle.

 A violation pertaining to a license plate not securely fastened to the vehicle, but
the plate is otherwise clearly displayed.

 A violation for lighting equipment not illuminating, but the violation is limited to a
single brake light, headlight, or running light or a single bulb in a larger light of the
same.

This bill does not include vehicle registrations that have expired for more than six 
months or violations relating to commercial vehicles; thus, peace officers may still stop 
vehicles for those infractions. 

Traffic stops are the most common form of interaction between American civilians and 
law enforcement. Low-level traffic stops are often used as pretext to stop a vehicle and 
investigate the driver for other possible crimes, giving officers vast discretion and 
contributing to racial disparities in policing. A 2019 analysis of RIPA data by the Public 
Policy Institute of California showed that during traffic stops, Black people were twice as 
likely as White people to be searched and twice as likely to experience some form of 
escalation, such as use of force or being asked to step out of the vehicle.1

1 https://www.ppic.org/publication/policy-brief-racial-disparities-in-law-enforcement-stops/ 

Page 1 of 3 02a.24

Page 25

https://www.ppic.org/publication/policy-brief-racial-disparities-in-law-enforcement-stops/


Support for SB 1389 CONSENT CALENDAR June 14, 2022

Page 2

71 transportation safety, transportation equity, racial equity, civil rights, police and 
transformative justice reform organizations nationwide have signed onto a letter 
requesting that the U.S. Department of Transportation and Department of Justice 
reexamine agency-sponsored programs that encourage law enforcement reliance on 
pretextual stops.2 For example, the “Data-Driven Approaches to Crime & Traffic Safety” 
(DDACTS) program teaches police departments to use pretextual traffic stops as a tool 
to stop crime by focusing enforcement in “high crime” areas. The coalition letter reads, 
“Although deemed constitutional by the Supreme Court, pretextual stops are particularly 
harmful—they result in racial inequities that far exceed disparities in traffic stops aimed 
at road safety; they result in particularly invasive questioning and searches. The 
DDACTS approach sounds in Broken Windows policing and other strategies that have 
wrought incredible harm, predominantly in communities of color, under the name of 
targeting high-crime neighborhoods.”

Conducting stops for low-level traffic violations that do not pose a threat to public safety 
takes away valuable officer time from addressing more serious offenses, including 
violent crime and dangerous moving violations. SB 1389 would reduce racial disparities, 
cut down on unnecessary and negative community interactions with the police, and limit 
the use of pretextual stops as an investigative tool. 

In February 2021, Council voted unanimously on direction to the City Manager to adopt 
the recommendations of the Mayor’s Fair and Impartial Policing Working Group, which 
included focusing the basis of traffic stops on safety and deprioritizing enforcement of 
minor traffic violations. Council should reaffirm its support for pretextual stop reform by 
endorsing SB 1389 and sending the attached letter of support to Senator Steven 
Bradford, Senator Nancy Skinner, and Assemblymember Buffy Wicks.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
None.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
No impact.

CONTACT PERSON
Councilmember Rigel Robinson, (510) 981-7170
Angie Chen, Legislative Assistant

Attachments: 
1: Letter of support 
2: Bill text
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB1389 

2 https://www.april-rural.org/2022/Coalition_Letter_on_Pretext_-_DOT_DOJ_02_22_2022.pdf 

Page 2 of 3

Page 26

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB1389
https://www.april-rural.org/2022/Coalition_Letter_on_Pretext_-_DOT_DOJ_02_22_2022.pdf
https://www.april-rural.org/2022/Coalition_Letter_on_Pretext_-_DOT_DOJ_02_22_2022.pdf


Support for SB 1389 CONSENT CALENDAR June 14, 2022

Page 3

June 14, 2022

The Honorable Steven Bradford
California State Senate
State Capitol, Room 7210
Sacramento, CA 95814

RE:   City of Berkeley’s Support for SB 1389

Dear Senator Steven Bradford, 

The Berkeley City Council would like to convey our full support for Senate Bill 1389, 
which would reduce racially-biased pretextual traffic stops and unnecessary contact with 
law enforcement by prohibiting peace officers from enforcing specified low-level 
infractions. 

The use of pretextual stops as an investigative tool is an invasive practice that too often 
opens the door for racial profiling and disparate use of force, without measurably 
improving public safety. Conducting stops for low-level traffic violations also takes 
valuable officer time away from addressing more serious offenses, including violent 
crime and moving violations that result in severe or fatal injuries on our streets. By 
preventing police officers from enforcing minor traffic infractions, SB 1389 would curtail 
the practice of pretextual stops and allow jurisdictions to focus on more critical issues in 
their communities. 

As cities across California embark on the long journey of reimagining public safety and 
the role of policing, Berkeley thanks you for your statewide leadership in spearheading 
this important piece of legislation.

Sincerely,
The Berkeley City Council 

CC: Senator Nancy Skinner
Assemblymember Buffy Wicks

Page 3 of 3

Page 27



Page 28



Disaster and Fire Safety Commission

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

ACTION CALENDAR
June 14, 2022

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Disaster and Fire Safety Commission

Submitted by: José Luis Bedolla, Chairperson, Disaster and Fire Safety Commission

Subject: Parking Enforcement of Existing Parking Code in Fire Zones 2 & 3

RECOMMENDATION
The Disaster and Fire Safety Commission (DFSC) recommends that Council direct the 
Berkeley Police Department to enforce existing Berkeley Municipal Code in all Fire 
Zones. 

POLICY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
On May 16, 2022, the Public Safety Policy Committee forwarded the item to the City 
Council (M/S/C Wengraf/Kesarwani) with a qualified positive recommendation 
amending the item to a budget referral for the FY 23 & FY 24 budget process to hire an 
additional dedicated parking officer for fire zones 2 & 3. Vote: All Ayes. 

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
Fully enforcing the existing parking code may require increased staff time from the 
Police Department - Parking Enforcement (or, in the future, the proposed Department of 
Transportation, “BerkDOT”). Exact costs and staff time are unknown.  

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
As another fire season rages, we are again seeing record-setting, deadly wildfires in 
California. The largest current fire is the Caldor Fire, which has burned 219,267 acres1 
and even threatened Berkeley Echo Lake. There is a continued concern about the level 
of preparedness for egress from Berkeley’s Fire Zones 2 and 3. 

The Berkeley Fire Department continues to educate the public on the importance of 
making and practicing an evacuation plan; for many residents of Fire Zones 2 and 3, a 
safe evacuation will depend on the ability to drive a vehicle away from the threat before 
being overtaken by a moving fire.

Many streets in these neighborhoods are narrow and winding, which limits both access 
– the ability for emergency vehicles to go into these areas, and egress – the ability for
residents to escape a fire (see, Exhibit 1)  These limitations are exacerbated by

1 https://www.fireweatheravalanche.org/fire/state/california

Page 1 of 5 02a.27

Page 29

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/manager


Parking Enforcement of Existing Parking Code in Fire Zones 2 & 3 ACTION CALENDAR
June 14, 2022

constant and flagrant violations of existing parking restrictions by Berkeley residents, 
visitors, and delivery vehicles, which cause additional pinch points and compress the 
available space for vehicles to drive on the roads. Additionally, illegally parked vehicles 
block sidewalks, creating a hazard for pedestrians and persons using wheelchairs. 
There seems to be a culture of illegal parking that continues due to a lack of 
consequence (see, Exhibit 2)

The continual violations of existing parking restrictions create a life-safety hazard in the 
hills in all emergency situations, and especially in a wildfire scenario, when rapid 
evacuation of residents will be necessary.  

The City is planning to impose further parking restrictions under its “Safe Passages” 
program as needed to ensure sufficient access and egress during a wildfire on these 
narrow streets.  If existing parking restrictions are not enforced, there is little reason to 
expect additional restrictions to have any positive impact on the situation.  

Exhibit 1: Street widths of >10 and <26 feet 

Exhibit 2, (select pictures taken on 7/28/2021 ~12:30 PM)

Page 2 of 5

Page 30



Parking Enforcement of Existing Parking Code in Fire Zones 2 & 3 ACTION CALENDAR
June 14, 2022

BACKGROUND
The City of Berkeley has been repeatedly notified of access and egress concerns due to 
a lack of parking restrictions and a lack of parking enforcement in the Hills Fire Zones, 
including but not limited to two prior recommendations by the Disaster and Fire Safety 
Commission: 

In February 2016, Council approved a January 12, 2016 recommendation 
from DFSC requesting that it: 

“refer to staff the Design of a parking restriction program in the Hills 
Fire Zone to ensure access for emergency vehicles and to allow for 
safe evacuations in an emergency and to hold public meetings to get 
community input in the design of such a program

That recommendation stated:
“Today we are 24 years after the devastating Oakland Hills Fire and 
50 years after concern was first expressed for the safety of residents 
given the conditions that will save lives in the Berkeley Hills”

In December 2019, the DFSC submitted a recommendation to Council, 
“Recommendation to Immediately Fund and Implement the Safe Passages Program 
and Additional Actions to Ensure Emergency Equipment Access to All Parts of the City” 
which included a number of recommended actions to prioritize parking restrictions in 
Berkeley’s Fire Zones as part of a Safe Passages program. 

Parking issues have been discussed in other recommendations over many years, 
including recommendations to implement new parking restrictions in Fire Zones 2 and 3 
to ensure safe access and egress for emergency vehicles. 

Safe Passages - Project in Progress: 

Los Angeles St Quail St Keefer St Thousand Oaks St

Page 3 of 5

Page 31



Parking Enforcement of Existing Parking Code in Fire Zones 2 & 3 ACTION CALENDAR
June 14, 2022

At this time, the Berkeley Fire Department has allocated staff time and funding towards 
Safe Passages work in the next few years. In the Safe Passages project, staff will 
evaluate and document the problem of emergency access and egress in the City’s Fire 
Zones and lead an interdepartmental program in addressing this problem through 
parking restrictions, increased enforcement, signage, and public education. The Safe 
Passages project is likely to result in an expansion of “No Parking” areas on 
dangerously narrow and/or winding streets in the Hills Fire Zones. 

As Safe Passages is a multi-year project that is still just getting off the ground, the 
DFSC is now providing this urgent recommendation to enforce existing parking 
restrictions in the meantime. 

This recommendation does not preclude or replace the need for new parking restrictions 
and other improvements that are expected to be an outcome of the Safe Passages 
project. 

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
There are no identified environmental effects or opportunities associated with the action 
requested in this report.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
As seen in the years of background and the multiple times that parking restrictions have 
been recommended by the DFSC and by Council, we believe there is a consensus that 
narrow streets that impede emergency vehicle access are a threat to life safety in 
Berkeley.

A consistent lack of enforcement sends the message that parking restrictions in the Hills 
are not important, but in truth these restrictions are crucial for life-safety in these 
neighborhoods. Illegally parked vehicles exacerbate already insufficient space on many 
narrow streets, potentially limiting access for emergency vehicles as well as hindering a 
wildfire evacuation. 

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
Alternatives could be considered as part of the City’s Safe Passages program and could 
include changing streets to one way only rather than two way, adding additional red 
curbing, especially on the smallest width streets in Zones 2 and 3, and adding to the 
Fire District Parking Restrictions. Each of these has the possibility of cost and additional 
community involvement and consultation before implementation. We recommend that 
enforcement of existing laws be increased while simultaneously planning and 
developing these other improvements. 

CITY MANAGER
The City Manager refers this recommendation to the budget process. 

Page 4 of 5

Page 32



Parking Enforcement of Existing Parking Code in Fire Zones 2 & 3 ACTION CALENDAR
June 14, 2022

Staff concurs that the narrow and winding streets in the Berkeley Hills, makes traveling 
under normal conditions challenging. Illegal parking can exacerbate ingress and egress 
of vehicles during an emergency event. 

Currently, Parking Enforcement Officers (PEOs) are deployed across the City using a 
“beat” structure with their primary focus being to provide enforcement to metered and 
residential parking permit (RPP) areas. They respond to other locations within their beat 
by complaint only. Due to staffing challenges, PEOs are frequently tasked with providing 
coverage to larger geographical areas. At this time, current resources and staffing 
models do not allow the robust analysis, project management, and enforcement that is 
being recommended.

Many of these issues are being discussed within the Fire Department’s Safe Passage 
Program. The scope of this recommendation will take time, staffing, and the funding of 
new positions to fully address all aspects of the Safe Passage Program. Until a 
comprehensive program can be developed, the Police Department will offer voluntary 
overtime to offer extra patrols to provide enforcement of restricted parking zones 
throughout the City during Red Flag events.

CONTACT PERSON
Keith May, Secretary, Disaster and Fire Safety Commission, 510-981-5508

Jennifer Tate, Berkeley Police Department Traffic Bureau, 510-981-5983

Page 5 of 5

Page 33



Page 34



Sugar-Sweetened Beverage
Product Panel of Experts Commission

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

ACTION CALENDAR
June 14, 2022

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Sugar Sweetened Beverage Product Panel of Experts (SSBPPE)

Submitted by: Holly Scheider, Chairperson, SSBPPE Commission

Subject: Recommendation that the City Council revise Resolution No. 69,917 
regarding procurement, sales and service of sugar-sweetened beverages.

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt a Resolution to amend Resolution No. 69,917 in response to the request of the 
City Council on June 1st, 2021, in Action Item #18A, the Sugar Sweetened Beverage 
Product Panel of Experts (SSBPPE) has considered “how to regulate sugar sweetened 
beverages at events held on City of Berkeley Property hosted by non-City entities who 
receive City of Berkeley funds.”  The Commission recommends that the Berkeley City 
Council revise the requirement for events that receive City of Berkeley funding to 
mandate that these events also comply with the intent of Resolution No. 69,917. 

The City Council has the opportunity to make the Resolution more impactful by banning 
the sale and service of sugary drinks at City sponsored events.  This will be a powerful 
message to community residents and visitors who attend events such as the Book 
Festival, Kite Festival, Juneteenth festival and Chocolate and Chalk Art Festival to 
name a few.  

SUMMARY  
The SSBPPE Commission recommends that the Berkeley City Council revise the 
requirement for events that receive City of Berkeley funding to mandate that these 
events also comply with the intent of Resolution No. 69,917. 

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
Cost of promulgating information, including developing signage, notifying City 
Departments and revising clauses in City contracts.  

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
Currently, the City of Berkeley Resolution No. 69917 allows sugar-sweetened 
beverages to be sold and distributed at events that receive City of Berkeley funding. 

Page 1 of 10
02a.28

Page 35

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager


  
Action Report to Revise Res. No. 69,917-N.S. ACTION CALENDAR

June 14, 2022

Page 2

The Healthy Berkeley program combines education and policies that are aimed at 
changing community norms around consumption of sugary drinks to reduce both 
consumption and the rates of disease linked to consumption.  The Healthy Checkout 
Ordinance passed in Oct 2020 along with the June 2021 City of Berkeley Procurement 
Resolution are policies that change the environment in which people purchase and 
consume sugary foods and beverages.  

Research has demonstrated that educational efforts alone (including signs at point of 
purchase) are limited in reducing consumption compared to removing sugary drinks 
from the environment as well as providing education.1  For example, the most 
successful way to reduce the purchase of sugar drinks is to not offer them for sale and 
to replace the offerings with healthy beverages.  Research has shown that this strategy 
has to led to significant health improvements.2  

BACKGROUND
In November of 2014, the Berkeley voters passed Measure D with 76% of the vote, 
which requires both the collection of a 1 cent-per-ounce tax on the distribution of SSBs 
in the City of Berkeley and the convening of the Sugar Sweetened Beverage Products 
Panel of Experts (SSBPPE) to recommend investments to both reduce the consumption 
of SSBs as well as to address the health consequences of the consumption of SSBs 
including diabetes, dental caries, heart disease and obesity.3 

To accomplish these goals, the City created the Healthy Berkeley program to reduce 
the consumption of sugar-sweetened beverages (“SSB”) in Berkeley and to address the 
effects of SSB consumption.  The City of Berkeley requires that all Healthy Berkeley 
funded programs (including the school district) adopt an organizational policy curtailing 
the service, procurement and sale of SSBs.  The purpose of these organizational 
policies is to change norms in our community about consuming sugary drinks.  
Educational programs are provided by community partners in order to complement and 
sustain the policy efforts.

We know from the public health campaigns to reduce tobacco use, that institutional 
policies that change norms have a powerful impact on behavior and are a vital tool to 
improving health in our communities. Education and media campaigns, by themselves, 
are not enough to change behaviors, especially when tobacco and beverage companies 
try to subvert the health messages using pervasive and persuasive marketing, and 
when there is an addictive aspect to the behavior as is the case with both tobacco and 
sugar.4

1 Interventions to reduce consumption of sugar-sweetened beverages or increase water intake: evidence from a 
systematic review and meta-analysis: https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/10.1111/obr.12580
2 https://www.ucsf.edu/news/2019/10/415746/workplace-sales-ban-sugared-drink-shows-positive-health-effects
3 B.M.C. 7388-NS § 7.72, 2014, City of Berkeley 

4 https://www.theatlantic.com/health/archive/2014/01/the-sugar-addiction-taboo/282699/

Page 2 of 10

Page 36

https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/10.1111/obr.12580
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Health_Human_Services/Level_3_-_Public_Health/SSB%20Tax%20Ordinance%207,388-N.S..pdf
https://www.theatlantic.com/health/archive/2014/01/the-sugar-addiction-taboo/282699/


  
Action Report to Revise Res. No. 69,917-N.S. ACTION CALENDAR

June 14, 2022

Page 3

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
There are no identifiable environmental effects, climate impacts, or sustainability 
opportunities associated with the subject of this report.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
In 2014, Berkeley voters overwhelmingly passed Measure D and since then the City of 
Berkeley has led the effort to reduce the consumption of sugary drinks and resulting 
health impacts and disparities, not only in Berkeley but also in the Bay Area and 
nationwide.  Sales of sugary beverages have decreased, and school and community 
groups have been funded to continue the effort to reduce sugary drink consumption and 
improve health.  Now is an opportune time for the City to once again provide strong 
leadership by prohibiting the sale and distribution of sugary drinks at City sponsored 
community events.  This addition to the Resolution would make it consistent with the 
mission of the Healthy Berkeley Program and provide powerful norm change and 
thereby improve the health of our community.  This policy would be responsive to the 
will of the voters, supportive of school and community efforts to improve Berkeley 
residents' health, and a model to other cities.  This policy will align the City with Healthy 
Berkeley grantees who have already adopted similar policies. The SSBPPE encourages 
the City to take this step to set an example and demonstrate its own commitment to the 
further reducing sugary drink consumption and improvement in community health.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
In January 2018, the SSBPPE voted to recommend that the Berkeley City Council adopt 
an Ordinance amending the Administrative Code to direct the City of Berkeley 
departments and City food services contractors to refrain from: 1) Procuring sugar-
sweetened beverages with City funds; 2) Selling sugar-sweetened beverages on City 
property, including in vending machines; and 3) Serving sugar-sweetened beverages at 
City meetings and events on City property. On March 27, 2018, the City Council voted 
to refer the recommendation to the City Manager and request that the City Manager 
draft an ordinance for consideration by the City Council.  In June 2018, the City Council 
ranked this ordinance around 32 among items to develop for the City. No further action 
was taken until 2019, when the SSBPPE forwarded a Sugar-Sweetened Beverage 
Procurement Resolution recommending that the City of Berkeley and City food services 
contractors shall not:

1) serve sugar-sweetened beverages at City meetings and events on City 
property,

2) procure sugar-sweetened beverages with City funds; and,
3) sell sugar-sweetened beverages on City property, including in vending 

machines.

Page 3 of 10

Page 37



  
Action Report to Revise Res. No. 69,917-N.S. ACTION CALENDAR

June 14, 2022

Page 4

CITY MANAGER
The City Manager appreciates the work done by the SSBPPE to reduce the 
consumption of sugar-sweetened beverages in Berkeley. Adherence to this 
resolution must be a self-monitored process by vendors and City Departments.

CONTACT PERSON
Roberto Terrones, Interim SSBPPE Commission Secretary, PHD, 510-981-5324 
RTerrones@cityofberkeley.info 

Attachments: 
1: Resolution with track changes and clean copy

Page 4 of 10

Page 38

mailto:RTerrones@cityofberkeley.info


  

RESOLUTION NO. ##,### -N.S.

AMENDING RESOLUTION No. 69.917 – N.S. ESTABLISHING CITY POLICY / 
AMENDING THE ADMINISTRATIVE CODE TO DIRECT CITY OF BERKELEY 
DEPARTMENTS TO REFRAIN FROM PROCURING, SERVING OR SELLING 

SUGARY DRINKS

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley is known for its commitment to reducing inequities in 
diet and disease and in promoting access to healthy food and beverages.

WHEREAS, drinking just one serving of sugar-sweetened beverage per day poses a 
30 percent or higher risk of becoming diabetic.

WHEREAS, drinking just one serving of sugar-sweetened beverage per day poses a 
30 percent or higher risk of early death from cardiovascular disease.

WHEREAS, City employees deserve a healthy work environment, with an increased 
variety of healthier, low-sugar, alternative beverages such as flavored waters, plain or 
carbonated water, 100% juice, milk drinks, diet drinks, unsweetened or artificially 
sweetened iced teas and coffee drinks.

WHEREAS, it is recognized that City staff are free to bring and consume their own 
sugary beverages at work.

WHEREAS, other public institutions that have completely eliminated the sales of 
sugar sweetened beverages on their premises and have demonstrated that as a 
result, positive changes have been documented in the staff’s metabolic disease 
indicators associated with lower risk of diabetes and heart disease.

WHEREAS, giving City employees access to healthier beverages in the workplace 
will increase healthy beverage consumption and reduce the impact of diet-related 
disease, thus reducing the City's health care expenses.

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley requires that all organizations receiving funding from 
Healthy Berkeley not serve or sell sugar sweetened beverages on their premises.

WHEREAS, the Berkeley Unified School District does not serve or sell soda to 
students of all ages on their premises, and this contributes to positive adult role 
modeling regarding healthy beverage consumption.

WHEREAS, Chapter 7.72 of the City of Berkeley Municipal Code has already defined 
sugar-sweetened beverages as all beverages with added caloric sweeteners with a 
minimum of 2 calories per fluid ounce, including juices with added sweetener, sodas, 
energy drinks, sweetened teas and coffee drinks, and sport drinks which offer little or 
no nutritional value, but include massive quantities of added sugar and in addition, 

Page 5 of 10

Page 39



  

Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 7.72 also defines exemptions and thus excludes 
waters,100% juice, milk drinks, diet drinks, as well as medical drinks and baby 
formula.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Berkeley shall not:

1. Procure sugar-sweetened beverages with City funds; and,
2. Serve or sell sugar-sweetened beverages on City property, including in vending 

machines.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City prohibits the sale or service of sugar-
sweetened beverages (as defined in the Sugar-Sweetened Beverage Product Distribution 
Tax – Chapter 7.72 .030 of the Berkeley Muni Code) at events that receive City of 
Berkeley funding and require signs be posted at these events educating the public about 
why sugar-sweetened beverages are not being served or sold.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that in areas or facilities where employees regularly 
work beyond the core business hours of 8 a.m. - 6 p.m., the City of Berkeley shall 
provide refrigerators in good working order and of adequate size for the number of 
employees in that area, to bring and store their own beverages.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED to ask the City Council to make a referral to the Sugar- 
Sweetened Beverage Product Panel of Experts to consider how to regulate sugar 
sweetened beverages at events held on City of Berkeley Property hosted by non-City 
entities who receive City of Berkeley funds.

Page 6 of 10

Page 40



  

RESOLUTION NO. ##,### -N.S.

AMENDING RESOLUTION No. 69.917 – N.S. ESTABLISHING CITY POLICY / 
AMENDING THE ADMINISTRATIVE CODE TO DIRECT CITY OF BERKELEY 
DEPARTMENTS TO REFRAIN FROM PROCURING, SERVING OR SELLING 

SUGARY DRINKS

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley is known for its commitment to reducing inequities in 
diet and disease and in promoting access to healthy food and beverages.

WHEREAS, drinking just one serving of sugar-sweetened beverage per day poses a 
30 percent or higher risk of becoming diabetic.

WHEREAS, drinking just one serving of sugar-sweetened beverage per day poses a 
30 percent or higher risk of early death from cardiovascular disease.

WHEREAS, City employees deserve a healthy work environment, with an increased 
variety of healthier low-sugar alternative beverages such as flavored waters, plain or 
carbonated water, 100% juice, milk drinks, diet drinks, unsweetened or artificially 
sweetened iced teas and coffee drinks.

WHEREAS, it is recognized that City staff are free to bring and consume their own 
sugary beverages at work.

WHEREAS, other public institutions that have completely eliminated the sales of 
sugar sweetened beverages on their premises and have demonstrated that as a 
result, positive changes have been documented in the staff’s metabolic disease 
indicators associated with lower risk of diabetes and heart disease

WHEREAS, giving City employees access to healthier beverages in the workplace 
will increase healthy beverage consumption and reduce the impact of diet-related 
disease, thus reducing the City's health care expenses.

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley requires that all organizations receiving funding from 
Healthy Berkeley not serve or sell sugar sweetened beverages on their premises.

WHEREAS, the Berkeley Unified School District does not serve or sell soda to 
students of all ages on their premises and this contributes to positive adult role 
modeling regarding healthy beverage consumption.

WHEREAS, Chapter 7.72 of the City of Berkeley Municipal Code has already defined 
sugar-sweetened beverages as all beverages with added caloric sweeteners with a 
minimum of 2 calories per fluid ounce, including juices with added sweetener, sodas, 
energy drinks, sweetened teas and coffee drinks, and sport drinks which offer little or 
no nutritional value, but include massive quantities of added sugar and in addition, 

Page 7 of 10

Page 41



  

Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 7.72 also defines exemptions and thus excludes 
waters,100% juice, milk drinks, diet drinks, as well as medical drinks and baby 
formula.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Berkeley shall not:

1. Procure sugar-sweetened beverages with City funds; and,
2. Serve or sell sugar-sweetened beverages on City property, including in vending 

machines.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City prohibits the sale or service of sugar-
sweetened beverages (as defined in the Sugar-Sweetened Beverage Product Distribution 
Tax – Chapter 7.72 .030 of the Berkeley Muni Code) at events that receive City of 
Berkeley funding and require signs be posted at these events educating the public about 
why sugar-sweetened beverages are not being served or sold.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that in areas or facilities where employees regularly 
work beyond the core business hours of 8 a.m. - 6 p.m., the City of Berkeley shall 
provide refrigerators in good working order and of adequate size for the number of 
employees in that area, to bring and store their own beverages.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED to ask the City Council to make a referral to the Sugar- 
Sweetened Beverage Product Panel of Experts to consider how to regulate sugar 
sweetened beverages at events held on City of Berkeley Property hosted by non-City 
entities who receive City of Berkeley funds.

Page 8 of 10

Page 42



Page 9 of 10

Page 43



Page 10 of 10

Page 44



2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6750 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-6760 
Email: auditor@CityofBerkeley.info ● Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/auditor 

INFORMATION CALENDAR 
June 14, 2022 

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

From: Jenny Wong, City Auditor 

Subject: City Auditor’s Office 2021 Peer Review Results 

INTRODUCTION 
The Association of Local Government Auditors (ALGA) has again issued an opinion that the City 
Auditor’s Office’s internal quality control system was suitably designed and operating 
effectively to provide reasonable assurance of compliance with Government Auditing Standards 
for the period of November 1, 2018 to October 31, 2021. 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
Auditors from Fairfax County, VA and the Transportation Authority in Orange County, CA 
completed an External Quality Control Review (peer review) of our internal quality control 
system. They followed the ALGA Peer Review Guide standards and guidelines in examining our 
system, including our efforts for ongoing monitoring and improvement. 

The peer reviewers examined seven projects representing 100 percent of our audits and 80 
percent of our auditing hours over the peer-review period. They also reviewed a selection of 
our non-audit service assessments in which we evaluated the impact of those services on our 
audits and identified safeguards for maintaining independence. It is in the opinion of the peer 
review team that our internal quality control system was adequately designed and operating 
effectively to provide reasonable assurance of compliance with Government Auditing 
Standards for the period of November 1, 2018 to October 31, 2021. 

Strengthening Auditor Accountability and Oversight 
The peer reviewers noted one area where our office can strengthen our internal control 
systems. The Payroll Audit Division is part of the City Auditor’s office and performs important 
payroll functions. Audits require independence and the reviewers noted that due to 
independence issues, we are unable to conduct performance audits of payroll, which is an 
important city function. Our office will look for methods of strengthening independence to 
perform payroll-related audits in the future. 

City Auditor’s Office Areas of Excellence 
The peer review team recognized our commitment to a high-standard of audit quality by 
identifying areas in which we excel: 

Page 1 of 6 02a.32

Page 45

mailto:auditor@CityofBerkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/auditor


   
 

 

 

Page 2 

 Employing highly-qualified audit staff. 

 Ensuring staff skills are maintained through training. The peer review team noted that 
Berkeley’s staff training far exceeds the minimum continuing professional education 
standards. 

 Developing well-organized workpapers and procedures that demonstrate adherence to 
Government Auditing Standards. 

The efforts of many led to the peer reviewer’s positive opinion and our ability to demonstrate a 
commitment to audit excellence. I would like to thank the following for their current and past 
contributions: 

 Ann-Marie Hogan, Former City Auditor whose unwavering belief in the value of 
Government Auditing Standards provided continuous support of a well-designed and 
effective internal quality control system.  

 I would also like to thank current and former staff: Erin Mullin, Senior Auditor; Caitlin 
Palmer, Senior Auditor; Alejandra Barrio-Gorski, Auditor I; Pauline Miller, Auditor I; 
Kendle Kuechle, Auditor I; Claudette Biemeret, Former Audit Manager; Tracy Yarlott-
Davis, Former Auditor II; Farkhad Askarov, Former Auditor II. 

BACKGROUND 
The Berkeley City Charter requires our audits to be performed in accordance with government 
auditing standards and those standards require that we undergo a peer review every three 
years. The City Auditor’s Office has consistently passed peer reviews since its first review in 
1997. 

Government Auditing Standards help ensure that government auditors maintain competence, 
integrity, objectivity, and independence in planning, conducting, and reporting their work. 
Auditors enhance their credibility by following standards so their work leads to improved 
government management, decision making, and oversight. 

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY 
The peer review team maintained workpapers in electronic format, which greatly reduced the 
use of paper and ink. There are no other identifiable environmental effects or opportunities 
associated with the subject of this report. 

POSSIBLE FUTURE ACTION 
We will explore ways to address the challenge raised by the peer reviewers to allow for future 
audits of payroll in compliance with the Government Auditing Standards. 

FISCAL IMPACTS OF POSSIBLE FUTURE ACTION 
None known at this time. 

Page 2 of 6

Page 46



   
 

 

 

Page 3 

CONTACT PERSON 
Jenny Wong, City Auditor (510) 981-6750 

Attachments:  
1: 2021 External Quality Control Review of the Berkeley City Auditor’s Office Final Report 

 

 

Page 3 of 6

Page 47



Page 4 of 6

Page 48



Page 5 of 6

Page 49



Page 6 of 6

Page 50



Upcoming Worksessions and Special Meetings 

start time is 6:00 p.m. unless otherwise noted 

Scheduled Dates 

June 2 Special Meeting – BART Development 

June 21 1. Ballot Measure Development/Discussion

July 19 1. Fire Facilities Study Report

There are no Worksessions scheduled for Fall 2022 due to limited meeting dates and cultural/religious holidays. 

Unscheduled Workshops 
1. Cannabis Health Considerations
2. Alameda County LAFCO Presentation

Unscheduled Presentations (City Manager) 

1. Civic Arts Grantmaking Process & Capital Grant Program

05

Page 51



City Council Referrals to the Agenda & Rules Committee and Unfinished 
Business for Scheduling 

1. 25. Surveillance Technology Report, Surveillance Acquisition Report, and Surveillance
Use Policy for Automatic License Plate Readers  (Continued from February 25, 2020. Item
contains revised and supplemental materials) (Referred from the May 12, 2020 agenda.)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution accepting the Surveillance Technology Report,
Surveillance Acquisition Report, and Surveillance Use Policy for Automatic License Plate
Readers submitted pursuant to Chapter 2.99 of the Berkeley Municipal Code.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Andrew Greenwood, Police, (510) 981-5900; Dave White, City Manager's Office,
(510) 981-7000
Note: Referred to Agenda & Rules for future scheduling.

06

Page 52



Address
Board/

Commission

Appeal Period 

Ends 

Public

Hearing

NOD – Notices of Decision

Public Hearings Scheduled
1201-1205 San Pablo Avenue ZAB TBD

Remanded to ZAB or LPC
1643-47 California St (new basement level and second story)

Deadline for ZAB action: July 25, 2022

1205 Peralta Avenue (conversion of an existing garage)

Notes

5/19/2022

CITY CLERK DEPARTMENT
WORKING CALENDAR FOR SCHEDULING LAND USE MATTERS

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL

07

Page 53



Page 54



Office of the City Manager 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099 
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

SUPPLEMENTAL 
AGENDA MATERIAL 

for Supplemental Packet 2 

Meeting Date:  November 10, 2020 

Item Number:  20

Item Description:   Annual Commission Attendance and Meeting Frequency 
Report 

Submitted by: Mark Numainville, City Clerk

The attached memo responds to issues and questions raised at the October 26 
Agenda & Rules Committee Meeting and the October 27 City Council Meeting 
regarding the ability of city boards and commissions to resume regular meeting 
schedules. 

Page 1 of 16 08

Page 55

mailto:manager@CityofBerkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager


Office of the City Manager 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099 
E-Mail: manager@cityofberkeley.info  Website: http://www.cityofberkeley.info/manager

G:\CLERK\MEMOS\Commissions\Memo - Commission Meetings - Council Supp 1 - Nov 10.docx

November 9, 2020 

To: Mayor and Council 

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager 

Subject: Commission Meetings Under COVID-19 Emergency (Item 20) 

____________________________________________________________________ 

This memo provides supplemental information for the discussion on Item 20 on the 
November 10, 2020 Council agenda.  Below is a summary and update of the status of 
meetings of Berkeley Boards and Commissions during the COVID-19 emergency 
declaration and the data collected by the City Manager on the ability of commissions to 
resume meetings in 2021. 

On March 10, 2020 the City Council ratified the proclamation of the Director of 
Emergency Services for a state of local emergency related to the COVID-19 pandemic.  
The emergency proclamation has been renewed twice by the Council and remains in 
effect. 

On March 17, 2020 the City Council adopted Resolution No. 69,331-N.S. which placed 
limitations of the meetings of City legislative bodies, including all boards and 
commissions.  The resolution allows for commissions to meet to conduct time-sensitive, 
legally mandated business with the authorization of the City Manager.  Since that time, 
several commissions have obtained this approval and held meetings; many other 
commissions have not met at all since March. 

The City Manager has periodically reviewed the status of commission meetings with the 
City Council Agenda & Rules Committee.  Recently, at the October 12, 2020 Agenda & 
Rules Committee meeting, the City Manager presented a proposal to allow all 
commissions to meet under limited circumstances.  The Committee voted to endorse 
the City Manager’s recommendation. 

Effective October 12, 2020, all City boards and commissions may meet once to develop 
and finalize their work plan for 2021 and to complete any Council referrals directly 
related to the COVID-19 pandemic response.  A second meeting may be held to 

Page 2 of 16

Page 56

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/manager


Commission Meetings Under COVID-19 Emergency November 9, 2020 

Page 2 

complete this work with specific authorization by the City Manager.  It is recommended 
that the meeting(s) occur by the end of February 2021. 

Commissions that have been granted permission to meet under Resolution No. 69,331-
N.S. may continue to meet pursuant to their existing authorization, and may also meet 
to develop their 2021 work plan. 

Commissions that have not requested meetings pursuant to the Resolution No. 69,331-
N.S. may meet pursuant to the limitations listed above. 

In response to questions from the Agenda & Rules Committee and the Council, the City 
Manager polled all departments that support commissions to obtain information on their 
capacity to support the resumption of regular commission meetings.  The information in 
Attachment 1 shows the information received from the departments and notes each 
commission’s ability to resume a regular, or semi-regular, meeting schedule in 2021. 

In summary, there are 24 commissions that have staff resources available to support a 
regular meeting schedule in 2021.  Seven of these 24 commissions have been meeting 
regularly during the pandemic.  There are five commissions that have staff resources 
available to support a limited meeting schedule in 2021. There are seven commissions 
that currently do not have staff resources available to start meeting regularly at the 
beginning of 2021.  Some of these seven commissions will have staff resources 
available later in 2021 to support regular meetings.  Please see Attachment 1 for the full 
list of commissions and their status. 

With regards to commission subcommittees, there has been significant discussion 
regarding the ability of staff to support these meetings in a virtual environment.  Under 
normal circumstances, the secretary’s responsibilities regarding subcommittees is 
limited to posting the agenda and reserving the meeting space (if in a city building).  
With the necessity to hold the meetings in a virtual environment and be open to the 
public, it is likely that subcommittee meetings will require significantly more staff 
resources to schedule, train, manage, and support the work of subcommittees on Zoom 
or a similar platform.  This additional demand on staff resources to support commission 
subcommittees is not feasible for any commission at this time. 

One possible option for subcommittees is to temporarily suspend the requirement for ad 
hoc subcommittees of city commissions to notice their meetings and require public 
participation.  Ad hoc subcommittees are not legislative bodies under the Brown Act and 
are not required to post agendas or allow for public participation.  These requirements 
are specific to Berkeley and are adopted by resolution in the Commissioners’ Manual.  If 
it is the will of the Council, staff could introduce an item to temporarily suspend these 

Page 3 of 16

Page 57



Commission Meetings Under COVID-19 Emergency November 9, 2020

Page 3 

requirements which will allow subcommittees of all commissions to meet as needed to 
develop recommendations that will be presented to the full commission. 

The limitations on the meetings of certain commissions are due to the need to direct 
staff resources and the resources of city legislative bodies to the pandemic response.  
Some of the staff assigned as commission secretaries are engaged in work with the City 
Emergency Operations Center or have been assigned new duties specifically related to 
the impacts of the pandemic. 

Meeting frequency for boards and commissions will continue to be evaluated on a 
regular basis by the City Manager and the Health Officer in consultation with 
Department Heads and the City Council.   

Attachments: 
1. List of Commissions with Meeting Status
2. Resolution 69,331-N.S.

Page 4 of 16

Page 58



November 10, 2020 - Item 20 

Supplemental Information

Att. 1

Boards and Commissions

Meetings Held 

Under COVID 

March - Oct

Regular Mtg. 

Date
Secretary Dept.

Resume Regular 

Schedule in 

January 2021?

Note

Fair Campaign Practices Commission 9 3rd Thur. Sam Harvey CA YES Have been meeting regularly under 
COVID Emergency

Open Government Commission 6 3rd Thur. Sam Harvey CA YES Have been meeting regularly under 
COVID Emergency

Animal Care Commission 0 3rd Wed. Amelia Funghi CM YES
Police Review Commission 10 2nd & 4th Wed. Katherine Lee CM YES Have been meeting regularly under 

COVID Emergency
Disaster and Fire Safety Commission 4 4th Wed. Keith May FES YES
Community Health Commission 0 4th Thur. Roberto Terrones HHCS YES
Homeless Commission 0 2nd Wed. Josh Jacobs HHCS YES
Homeless Services Panel of Experts 5 1st Wed Josh Jacobs HHCS YES
Human Welfare & Community Action 
Commission

0 3rd Wed. Mary-Claire Katz HHCS YES

Mental Health Commission 1 4th Thur. Jamie Works-Wright HHCS YES
Sugar-Sweetened Beverage Product Panel of 

Experts

0 3rd Thur. Dechen Tsering HHCS YES

Civic Arts Commission 2 4th Wed. Jennifer Lovvorn OED YES
Elmwood BID Advisory Board 1 Contact Secretary Kieron Slaughter OED YES
Loan Administration Board 0 Contact Secretary Kieron Slaughter OED YES
Solano Avenue BID Advisory Board 2 Contact Secretary Eleanor Hollander OED YES
Design Review Committee 6 3rd Thur. Anne Burns PLD YES Have been meeting regularly under 

COVID Emergency
Energy Commission 0 4th Wed. Billi Romain PLD YES
Landmarks Preservation Commission 6 1st Thur. Fatema Crane PLD YES Have been meeting regularly under 

COVID Emergency
Planning Commission 3 1st Wed. Alene Pearson PLD YES Have been meeting regularly under 

COVID Emergency
Zoning Adjustments Board 11 2nd & 4th Thur. Shannon Allen PLD YES Have been meeting regularly under 

COVID Emergency
Parks and Waterfront Commission 4 2nd Wed. Roger Miller PRW YES
Commission on Disability 0 1st Wed. Dominika Bednarska PW YES
Public Works Commission 4 1st Thur. Joe Enke PW YES
Zero Waste Commission 0 4th Mon. Heidi Obermeit PW YES
Commission on the Status of Women 0 4th Wed. Shallon Allen CM YES - LIMITED Secretary has intermittent COVID 

assignments

1 of 2

Page 5 of 16

Page 59



November 10, 2020 - Item 20 

Supplemental Information

Att. 1

Boards and Commissions

Meetings Held 

Under COVID 

March - Oct

Regular Mtg. 

Date
Secretary Dept.

Resume Regular 

Schedule in 

January 2021?

Note

Commission on Aging 0 3rd Wed. Richard Castrillon HHCS REDUCED 
FREQUENCY

Significant Dept. resources assigned 
to COVID response

Housing Advisory Commission 0 1st Thur. Mike Uberti HHCS REDUCED 
FREQUENCY

Significant Dept. resources assigned 
to COVID response

Measure O Bond Oversight Committee 0 3rd Monday Amy Davidson HHCS REDUCED 
FREQUENCY

Significant Dept. resources assigned 
to COVID response

Transportation Commission 2 3rd Thur. Farid Javandel PW REDUCED 
FREQUENCY

Staff assigned to COVID response

Children, Youth, and Recreation 
Commission

0 4th Monday Stephanie Chu PRW NO - SEPT 2021 Staff assigned to COVID response

Youth Commission 0 2nd Mon. Ginsi Bryant PRW NO - SEPT 2021 Staff assigned to COVID response
Community Environmental Advisory 
Commission

0 2nd Thur. Viviana Garcia PLD NO - JUNE 2021 Staff assigned to COVID response

Cannabis Commission 0 1st Thur. VACANT PLD NO - JAN. 2022 Staff vacancy
Peace and Justice Commission 0 1st Mon. VACANT CM NO Staff vacancy
Commission on Labor 0 3rd Wed., alternate monthsKristen Lee HHCS NO Staff assigned to COVID response
Personnel Board 1 1st Mon. La Tanya Bellow HR NO Staff assigned to COVID response

2 of 2

Page 6 of 16

Page 60



Att. 2Page 7 of 16

Page 61



Page 8 of 16

Page 62



Page 9 of 16

Page 63



 
Office of the City Manager 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099 
E-Mail: manager@cityofberkeley.info  Website: http://www.cityofberkeley.info/manager 

October 22, 2020 
 
To: Berkeley Boards and Commissions 
 
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager 
 
Subject: Commission Meetings During COVID-19 Emergency 
 
 
This memo serves to provide a summary and update of the status of meetings of Berkeley 
Boards and Commissions during the COVID-19 emergency declaration. 

On March 10, 2020, the City Council ratified the proclamation of the Director of Emergency 
Services for a state of local emergency related to the COVID-19 pandemic.  The emergency 
proclamation has been renewed twice by the Council and remains in effect. 

On March 17, 2020, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 69,331-N.S. which placed 
limitations of the meetings of City legislative bodies, including all boards and commissions.  
The resolution allows for commissions to meet to conduct time-sensitive, legally mandated 
business with the authorization of the City Manager.  Since that time, several commissions 
have obtained this approval and held meetings; many other commissions have not met at 
all since March. 

The City Manager has periodically reviewed the status of commission meetings with the 
City Council Agenda & Rules Committee.  Recently, at the October 12, 2020, Agenda & 
Rules Committee meeting, the City Manager presented a proposal to allow all commissions 
to meet under limited circumstances.  The Committee voted to endorse the City Manager’s 
recommendation. 

Effective October 12, 2020, all City boards and commissions may meet once to develop and 
finalize their work plan for 2021 and to complete any Council referrals directly related to the 
COVID-19 pandemic response.  A second meeting may be held to complete this work with 
specific authorization by the City Manager.  It is recommended that the meeting(s) occur by 
the end of February 2021. 

Commissions that have been granted permission to meet under Resolution No. 69,331-N.S. 
may continue to meet pursuant to their existing authorization, and may also meet to develop 
their 2021 work plan. 

Commissions that have not requested meetings pursuant to the Resolution No. 69,331-N.S. 
may meet pursuant to the limitations listed above. 

Page 10 of 16

Page 64

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/manager


Page 2 
October 22, 2020 
Re:  Commission Meetings During COVID-19 Emergency 
 
 
To assist commissions with the development of their work plan and to provide the City 
Council with a consistent framework to review the work plans, the City Manager has 
developed the following items to consider in developing the work plan that is submitted to 
the City Council agenda. 

Prompts for Commissions to use in work plan: 

 What commission items for 2021 have a direct nexus with the COVID-19 response 
or are the result of a City Council referral pertaining to COVID-19? 

 What commission items for 2021 are required for statutory reasons? 

 What commission items for 2021 are required for budgetary or fund allocation 
reasons? 

 What commission items for 2021 support council-adopted or voter-adopted mission 
critical projects or programs? 

 What are the anticipated staff demands (above and beyond baseline) for analysis, 
data, etc., to support commission work in 2021 (baseline duties = posting agendas, 
creating packets, attend meetings, minutes, etc.)?  

The limitations on commission meetings are due to the need to direct staff resources and 
the resources of city legislative bodies to the pandemic response.  Many of the staff 
assigned as commission secretaries are engaged in work with the City Emergency 
Operations Center or have been assigned new specific duties related to the impacts of the 
pandemic. 
 
Meeting frequency for boards and commissions will continue to be evaluated on a regular 
basis by the City Manager in consultation with Department Heads and the City Council.  
More frequent meetings by commissions will be permitted as the conditions under COVID-
19 dictate. 
 
Thank you for your service on our boards and commissions.  The City values the work of 
our commissions and we appreciate your partnership and understanding as we address this 
pandemic as a resilient and vibrant community. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Resolution 69,331-N.S. 
2. List of Commissions with Meeting Data 

 
 
cc: Mayor and City Councilmembers 

Senior Leadership Team 

Page 11 of 16

Page 65



Page 12 of 16

Page 66



Page 13 of 16

Page 67



Page 14 of 16

Page 68



Boards and Commissions
Meetings Held Under COVID 

Emergency (through 10/11)

Scheduled Meetings in 

October

Regular Mtg. 

Date
Secretary Department

Zoning Adjustments Board 10 1 2nd & 4th Thur. Shannon Allen PLD

Police Review Commission 9 1 2nd & 4th Wed. Katherine Lee CM

Fair Campaign Practices Commission 8 1 3rd Thur. Sam Harvey CA

Design Review Committee 5 1 3rd Thur. Anne Burns PLD

Landmarks Preservation Commission 5 1 1st Thur. Fatema Crane PLD

Open Government Commission 5 1 3rd Thur. Sam Harvey CA

Homeless Services Panel of Experts 4 1 1st Wed Brittany Carnegie HHCS

Disaster and Fire Safety Commission 3 1 4th Wed. Keith May FES

Parks and Waterfront Commission 3 1 2nd Wed. Roger Miller PRW

Planning Commission 3 1st Wed. Alene Pearson PLD

Public Works Commission 3 1 1st Thur. Joe Enke PW

Civic Arts Commission 2 4th Wed. Jennifer Lovvorn OED

Solano Avenue BID Advisory Board 2 Contact Secretary Eleanor Hollander OED

Elmwood BID Advisory Board 1 Contact Secretary Kieron Slaughter OED

Joint Subcom. on Implementation of State Housing Laws 1 4th Wed. Alene Pearson PLD

Mental Health Commission 1 4th Thur. Jamie Works-Wright HHCS

Personnel Board 1 1st Mon. La Tanya Bellow HR

Transportation Commission 1 1 3rd Thur. Farid Javandel PW

Animal Care Commission 0 3rd Wed. Amelia Funghi CM

Cannabis Commission 0 1st Thur. PLD

Children, Youth, and Recreation Commission 0 4th Monday Stephanie Chu PRW

Commission on Aging 0 3rd Wed. Richard Castrillon HHCS

Commission on Disability 0 1st Wed. Dominika Bednarska PW

Commission on Labor 0 3rd Wed., alternate monthsNathan Dahl HHCS

Commission on the Status of Women 0 4th Wed. Shallon Allen CM

Community Environmental Advisory Commission 0 2nd Thur. Viviana Garcia PLD

Community Health Commission 0 4th Thur. Roberto Terrones HHCS

Energy Commission 0 4th Wed. Billi Romain PLD

Homeless Commission 0 2nd Wed. Brittany Carnegie HHCS

Housing Advisory Commission 0 1st Thur. Mike Uberti HHCS

Human Welfare & Community Action Commission 0 3rd Wed. Mary-Claire Katz HHCS

Loan Administration Board 0 Contact Secretary Kieron Slaughter OED

Measure O Bond Oversight Committee 0 3rd Monday Amy Davidson HHCS

Peace and Justice Commission 0 1st Mon. Nina Goldman CM

Sugar-Sweetened Beverage Product Panel of Experts 0 3rd Thur. Dechen Tsering HHCS

Youth Commission 0 2nd Mon. Ginsi Bryant PRW

Zero Waste Commission 0 4th Mon. Heidi Obermeit PW

Page 15 of 16

Page 69



Page 16 of 16

Page 70



Hybrid Meeting Policies for City Council Meetings
Revised May 2022

The policy below covers the conduct of hybrid City Council meetings (in-person and 
remote participation) held in accordance with the Government Code and any 
relevant Executive Orders or State declared emergencies. These administrative 
policies supplement the City Council Rules of Procedure and Order.

City Council policy committees and city boards and commissions will continue to 
meet in a virtual-only setting until the City Council makes the required findings under 
state law that in-person meetings may resume. 

I. Vaccination Status
Prior to entry, all in-person attendees at the meeting location must present
valid proof of “up-to-date” COVID-19 vaccination or a verified negative test
conducted within one day prior for an antigen test or two days prior for a PCR
test. An attendee is “up-to-date” with their vaccinations if:

 It has been less than 2 months after receiving the initial dose of their
Johnson & Johnson Vaccine.

 It has been less than 5 months after receiving the second dose of their
two-dose Pfizer or Moderna initial series.

 The attendee has received a booster.

Pre-entry negative testing

Definition: Testing must be conducted within one day for an antigen test and 
within two days for a PCR test prior to entry into an event. Results of the test 
must be available prior to entry into the facility or venue. Children under 2 
years of age are exempt from the testing requirement, consistent with CDC 
guidance.

Verification: See current CDPH Updated Testing Guidance and CDPH Over-
the-Counter Testing Guidance for acceptable methods of proof of negative 
COVID-19 test result and information on Over-the-Counter tests. Note: Self-
attestation may not be used to verify negative test result, even when using 
Over-the-Counter (or at home tests) for entry into Indoor Mega Events.

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Beyond-
Blueprint-Framework.aspx 

II. Health Status Precautions
If a person who desires to attend the meeting in-person is feeling sick,
including but not limited to, cough, shortness of breath or difficulty breathing,

Page 1 of 39 09

Page 71

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/international-travel-during-covid19.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/international-travel-during-covid19.html
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Updated-COVID-19-Testing-Guidance.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Over-The-Counter-Tests-LHJ-Guidance.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Over-The-Counter-Tests-LHJ-Guidance.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Beyond-Blueprint-Framework.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Beyond-Blueprint-Framework.aspx


  

fever or chills, muscle or body aches, vomiting or diarrhea, or new loss of 
taste or smell, they will be advised to attend the meeting remotely.

If an in-person attendee has been in close contact, as defined below, with a 
person who has tested positive for COVID-19 in the past five days, they are 
advised to attend the meeting remotely.

Close contact is defined as being within approximately 6 feet for greater than 
15 minutes over 24 hours within 2 days before symptoms appear (or before a 
positive test for asymptomatic individuals); or having contact with COVID-19 
droplets (e.g., being coughed on while not wearing recommended personal 
protective equipment). 

A voluntary sign in sheet will be available at the meeting entry for in-person 
attendees. This will assist with contact tracing in case of COVID-19 contact 
resulting from the meeting.

III. Face Coverings/Mask
Face coverings or masks that cover both the nose and mouth are required for 
all attendees at an in-person City Council meeting. Face coverings will be 
provided by the City and available for attendees to use at the meeting. 
Members of the City Council, city staff, and the public are required to wear a 
mask at all times, except when speaking publicly from the dais or at the public 
comment podium.

If an attendee at a Council meeting is not wearing a mask, a mask will be 
offered to them to use.  If the attendee refuses to wear a mask, a recess will 
be called in order to provide guidance to the attendee on the requirement and 
their options for attending remotely and in-person. 

Private security personnel will be the primary person for requesting 
compliance.  If removal of a non-compliant person is needed, law 
enforcement personnel will perform this task.

IV. Physical Distancing
Currently, there are no physical distancing requirements in place by the State 
of California or the Local Health Officer for an indoor event similar to a 
Council meeting.  

Audience seating capacity will be at regular allowable levels per the Fire 
Code. The relevant capacity limits will be posted at the meeting location.
However, all attendees are requested to be respectful of the personal space of 
other attendees.  An area of the public seating area will be designated as 
“distanced seating” to accommodate persons with a medical status that 

Page 2 of 39

Page 72



  

requires distancing and for those that choose to distance for personal health 
reasons.

Conference room capacity is limited to 15 persons.  

City staff will present remotely in order to reduce the number of persons in the 
Boardroom and back conference area.

Distancing is encouraged for the dais and partitions will be used as needed 
for the seating positions on the dais.

V. Protocols for Remote Participation by Mayor or Councilmembers
Upon the repeal of the state-declared emergency, all standard Brown Act 
requirements will be in effect for members of the Council participating 
remotely. For the Mayor and Councilmembers participating remotely, the 
remote location must be accessible to the public and the public must be able 
to participate and give public comment from the remote location.

 A Councilmember at a remote location will follow the same policies as 
the Boardroom with regards to vaccination status and testing 
requirements, health status precautions, and masking requirements.  

 A Councilmember at a remote location may impose reasonable 
capacity limits at their location.

VI. Hand Washing/Sanitizing
There are hand sanitizing stations placed at the entry and strategically 
throughout the Boardroom.  The bathrooms have soap and water for 
handwashing.

VII. Air Flow/Circulation/Sanitizing
Berkeley Unified Facilities Staff performs a vigorous cleaning process after 
each use of the Boardroom.  BUSD upgraded all HVAC filtration to MERV13, 
and with the inclusion of Needlepoint BiPolar Ionization, is achieving a rating 
that is closer to MERV18.  Additionally, BUSD installed indoor air quality 
monitoring sensors in all facilities that constantly monitor Volatile Organic 
Compounds, CO2, Relative Humidity, and Temperature.  The sensors and 
alarms allow BUSD to ensure that all systems are working properly and as 
designed.  If a sensor trips an alarm, a work order request is generated 
immediately to ensure the system is repaired expeditiously. 

VIII. Overflow in Gymnasium
An overflow indoor seating area will be available at the West Campus 
Gymnasium if staff determines that attendance is likely to exceed the capacity 
of the Boardroom. The capacity of the gymnasium is 200 persons. The 

Page 3 of 39

Page 73



  

overflow area will have a broadcast of the meeting in progress to allow 
participants to follow the proceedings and move to the Boardroom at the 
appropriate time to provide public comment if desired.  This area will be 
monitored by the BUSD security personnel.

IX. Food Provided for Elected Officials and Designated Staff
- No buffet dinner provided. Box lunches only. Maximum of 16 (Mayor & 

Council [9], City Manager, City Attorney, City Clerk [2], Deputy City 
Managers [2], BCM Staff)

- Individually packaged snacks will be provided on a common table and 
drinks will be available in the refrigerator.

X. In-Meeting Procedures 

Revised and Supplemental Materials 
All revised and supplemental materials for items on the agenda submitted 
after 12:00pm (noon) the day prior to the meeting must be submitted to the 
City Clerk in both paper AND electronic versions. 
 Paper: 42 copies delivered to the Boardroom (distributed per normal 

procedure)
 Electronic: e-mailed to the Agenda Inbox (posted online)

Communications from the Public
The public may submit communications in hard copy at the Boardroom or 
electronically to clerk@cityofberkeley.info. To ensure that both in-person and 
remote Councilmembers receive the communication, the public should submit 
10 copies at the Boardroom and send the electronic version to the e-mail 
listed above.

Page 4 of 39

Page 74

mailto:clerk@cityofberkeley.info


  

1

Hybrid Meeting Policies for City Council Meetings
Revised May 2022

The policy below covers the conduct of hybrid City Council meetings (in-person and 
remote participation) held in accordance with the Government Code and any 
relevant Executive Orders or State declared emergencies. 

City Council policy committees and city boards and commissions will continue to 
meet in a virtual-only setting until the City Council makes the required findings under 
state law that in-person meetings may resume. 

I. Vaccination Status
Prior to entry, all in-person attendees at the meeting location must present 
valid proof of “up-to-date” COVID-19 vaccination or a verified negative test 
conducted within one day prior for an antigen test or two days prior for a PCR 
test. An attendee is “up-to-date” with their vaccinations if:

 It has been less than 2 months after receiving the initial dose of their 
Johnson & Johnson Vaccine. 

 It has been less than 5 months after receiving the second dose of their 
two-dose Pfizer or Moderna initial series. 

 The attendee has received a booster. 

Pre-entry negative testing

Definition: Testing must be conducted within one day for an antigen test and 
within two days for a PCR test prior to entry into an event. Results of the test 
must be available prior to entry into the facility or venue. Children under 2 
years of age are exempt from the testing requirement, consistent with CDC 
guidance.

Verification: See current CDPH Updated Testing Guidance and CDPH Over-
the-Counter Testing Guidance for acceptable methods of proof of negative 
COVID-19 test result and information on Over-the-Counter tests. Note: Self-
attestation may not be used to verify negative test result, even when using 
Over-the-Counter (or at home tests) for entry into Indoor Mega Events.

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Beyond-
Blueprint-Framework.aspx 

II. Health Status Precautions
If a person who desires to attend the meeting in-person is feeling sick, 
including but not limited to, cough, shortness of breath or difficulty breathing, 

Page 5 of 39

Page 75

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/international-travel-during-covid19.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/international-travel-during-covid19.html
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Updated-COVID-19-Testing-Guidance.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Over-The-Counter-Tests-LHJ-Guidance.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Over-The-Counter-Tests-LHJ-Guidance.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Beyond-Blueprint-Framework.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Beyond-Blueprint-Framework.aspx


  

2

fever or chills, muscle or body aches, vomiting or diarrhea, or new loss of 
taste or smell, they will be advised to attend the meeting remotely.

If an in-person attendee has been in close contact, as defined below, with a 
person who has tested positive for COVID-19 in the past five days, they will 
be advised to attend the meeting remotely.

Close contact is defined as being within approximately 6 feet for greater than 
15 minutes over 24 hours within 2 days before symptoms appear (or before a 
positive test for asymptomatic individuals); or having contact with COVID-19 
droplets (e.g., being coughed on while not wearing recommended personal 
protective equipment). 

A voluntary sign in sheet will be available at the meeting entry for in-person 
attendees. This will assist with contact tracing in case of COVID-19 contact 
resulting from the meeting.

III. Face Coverings/Mask
Face coverings or masks that cover both the nose and mouth are required for 
all attendees at an in-person City Council meeting. Face coverings will be 
provided by the City and available for attendees to use at the meeting. 
Members of the City Council, city staff, and the public are required to wear a 
mask at all times, except when speaking publicly from the dais or at the public 
comment podium.

If an attendee at a Council meeting is not wearing a mask, a mask will be 
offered to them to use.  If the attendee refuses to wear a mask, a recess will 
be called in order to provide guidance to the attendee on the requirement and 
their options for attending remotely and in-person. 

Private security personnel will be the primary person for requesting 
compliance.  If removal of a non-compliant person is needed, law 
enforcement personnel will perform this task.

IV. Physical Distancing
Currently, there are no physical distancing requirements in place by the State 
of California or the Local Health Officer for an indoor event similar to a 
Council meeting.  

Audience seating capacity will be at regular allowable levels per the Fire Code. 
However, all attendees are requested to be respectful of the personal space of 
other attendees.  An area of the public seating area will be designated as 

Page 6 of 39

Page 76



  

3

“distanced seating” to accommodate persons with a medical status that 
requires distancing and for those that choose to distance for personal health 
reasons.

Conference room capacity is limited to 15 persons.  The relevant capacity 
limits will be posted at the meeting location.

City staff will present remotely in order to reduce the number of persons in the 
Boardroom and back conference area.

Distancing is encouraged for the dais and partitions will be used as needed 
for the seating positions on the dais.

V. Protocols for Remote Participation by Mayor or Councilmembers
Upon the repeal of the state-declared emergency, all standard Brown Act 
requirements will be in effect for members of the Council participating 
remotely. For the Mayor and Councilmembers participating remotely, the 
remote location must be accessible to the public and the public must be able 
to participate and give public comment from the remote location.

 A Councilmember at a remote location will follow the same policies as 
the Boardroom with regards to vaccination status and testing 
requirements, health status precautions, and masking requirements.  

 A Councilmember at a remote location may impose reasonable 
capacity limits at their location.

VI. Hand Washing/Sanitizing
There are hand sanitizing stations placed at the entry and strategically 
throughout the Boardroom.  The bathrooms have soap and water for 
handwashing.

VII. Air Flow/Circulation/Sanitizing
Berkeley Unified Facilities Staff performs a vigorous cleaning process after 
each use of the Boardroom.  BUSD upgraded all HVAC filtration to MERV13, 
and with the inclusion of Needlepoint BiPolar Ionization, is achieving a rating 
that is closer to MERV18.  Additionally, BUSD installed indoor air quality 
monitoring sensors in all facilities that constantly monitor Volatile Organic 
Compounds, CO2, Relative Humidity, and Temperature.  The sensors and 
alarms allow BUSD to ensure that all systems are working properly and as 
designed.  If a sensor trips an alarm, a work order request is generated 
immediately to ensure the system is repaired expeditiously. 

Page 7 of 39

Page 77



  

4

VIII. Overflow in Gymnasium
An overflow indoor seating area will be available at the West Campus 
Gymnasium for every meeting.   The capacity of the gymnasium is 200 
persons. The overflow area will have a broadcast of the meeting in progress 
to allow participants to follow the proceedings and move to the Boardroom at 
the appropriate time to provide public comment if desired.  This area will be 
monitored by the BUSD security personnel.

IX. Food Provided for Elected Officials and Designated Staff
- No buffet dinner provided. Box lunches only. Maximum of 16 (Mayor & 

Council [9], City Manager, City Attorney, City Clerk [2], Deputy City 
Managers [2], BCM Staff)

- Individually packaged snacks will be provided on a common table and 
drinks will be available in the refrigerator.

X. In-Meeting Procedures 

Revised and Supplemental Materials from Staff and Council
All revised and supplemental materials for items on the agenda submitted 
after 12:00pm (noon) the day prior to the meeting must be submitted to the 
City Clerk in both paper AND electronic versions. 
 Paper: 42 copies delivered to the Boardroom (distributed per normal 

procedure)
 Electronic: e-mailed to the Agenda Inbox (posted online)

Communications from the Public
A communication submitted by the public during the City Council meeting 
may be shared as follows.
 Paper: If requested by the Presiding Officer, the document can be 

displayed in the Boardroom and screen shared on the Zoom. 
 Electronic: If requested by the Presiding Officer, the document can be 

displayed in the Boardroom and screen shared on the Zoom.

Page 8 of 39

Page 78



Office of the City Attorney

Date: March 3, 2021

To: Agenda and Rules Committee

From: Office of the City Attorney

Re: Continuing Use of Teleconferencing for Public Meetings

Assembly Bill 361 amended the Ralph M. Brown act to authorize the City to continue to 
hold teleconferenced meetings during a Governor-declared state of emergency without 
complying with a number of requirements ordinarily applicable to teleconferencing.  For 
example, under AB 361, the City may hold teleconferenced meetings without:

1. Posting agendas at all teleconference locations
2. Listing each teleconference location in the notice and agenda for the 

meeting
3. Allowing the public to access and provide public comment from each 

teleconference location 
4. Requiring a quorum of the body to teleconference from locations within City 

boundaries
(Cal. Gov. Code § 549539(b)(3) & (e)(1).)

Under AB 361, the City can continue to hold teleconferenced meetings without adhering 
to the above practices as long as the state of emergency continues and either (1) “state 
or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing,” 
or (2) the City determines that “meeting in person would present imminent risks to the 
health or safety of attendees.” (Cal. Gov. Code § 54953(e)(1).)  

Every thirty days, the City must review and determine that either of the above conditions 
continues to exist. (Cal. Gov. Code § 54953(e)(3).)  Since September 28, 2021, the City 
Council has passed a recurring resolution every thirty days determining that both of the 
above conditions continue to exist and therefore teleconferencing under AB 361 is 
warranted.  The Council may continue to renew the teleconferencing resolution every 
thirty days, and thereby continue to hold teleconferenced meetings under the procedures 
it has used throughout the pandemic, until the state of emergency ends.  (See Cal. Gov. 
Code § 54953(e)(3)(A).) 

The state of emergency for COVID-19 has been in effect since it was issued by the 
Governor on March 4, 2020.  There is no clear end date for the state of emergency at this 
time.  As recently as February 17, 2022, the Governor stated that, for now, the state will 
continue to operate under the state of emergency, but that his goal is “to unwind the state 

Page 9 of 39

Page 79



March 2, 2022
Page 2   Re:  Continuing Use of Teleconferencing for Public Meetings

of emergency as soon as possible.”1  Additionally, per a February 25, 2022 Los Angeles 
Times article, Newsom administration officials have indicated that the state of emergency 
is necessary for the State’s continued response to the pandemic, including measures 
such as waiving licensing requirements for healthcare workers and clinics involved in 
vaccination and testing.2 

On March 15, 2022, the California State Senate Governmental Organization Committee 
will consider a resolution (SCR 5) ending the state of emergency.3  Some reporting 
suggests that the Republican-sponsored resolution is unlikely to pass.  Notably, Senate 
Leader Toni Atkins’ statement on the Senate’s consideration of SCR 5 articulates strong 
support for the state of emergency.4  

The Governor has issued an executive order (N-1-22) which extends to March 31, 2022 
sunset dates for teleconferencing for state legislative bodies (under the Bagley-Keene 
Open Meeting Act) and student body organizations (under the Gloria Romero Open 
Meetings Act).5  Executive Order N-1-22 does not affect the Brown Act teleconferencing 
provisions of AB 361, which have a sunset date of January 1, 2024.  Therefore, until 
January 1, 2024, the City may utilize the teleconferencing provisions under AB 361 as 
long as the state of emergency remains in effect.  

1 New York Times, California Lays Out a Plan to Treat the Coronavirus as a Manageable Risk Not an 
Emergency (Feb. 17, 2022), https://www.nytimes.com/2022/02/18/us/california-lays-out-a-plan-to-treat-the-
coronavirus-as-a-manageable-risk-not-an-emergency.html. 
2 Los Angeles Times, Newsom scales back some special pandemic rules, but not California’s state of 
emergency (Feb. 25, 2022), https://www.latimes.com/california/story/2022-02-25/newsom-scales-back-
special-pandemic-rules-but-not-california-state-of-emergency. 
3 Text of SCR 5 available at: 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SCR5. 
4 Press release: Senator Toni G. Atkins, Senate Leader Atkins Issues Statement on SCR 5 and the State of 
Emergency (Feb. 17, 2022), https://sd39.senate.ca.gov/news/20220217-senate-leader-atkins-issues-
statement-scr-5-and-state-emergency.  
5 Text of Executive Order N-1-22available at: https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/01/1.5.22-
Bagley-Keene-waiver-EO.pdf. 

Page 10 of 39

Page 80

https://www.nytimes.com/2022/02/18/us/california-lays-out-a-plan-to-treat-the-coronavirus-as-a-manageable-risk-not-an-emergency.html
https://www.nytimes.com/2022/02/18/us/california-lays-out-a-plan-to-treat-the-coronavirus-as-a-manageable-risk-not-an-emergency.html
https://www.latimes.com/california/story/2022-02-25/newsom-scales-back-special-pandemic-rules-but-not-california-state-of-emergency
https://www.latimes.com/california/story/2022-02-25/newsom-scales-back-special-pandemic-rules-but-not-california-state-of-emergency
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SCR5
https://sd39.senate.ca.gov/news/20220217-senate-leader-atkins-issues-statement-scr-5-and-state-emergency
https://sd39.senate.ca.gov/news/20220217-senate-leader-atkins-issues-statement-scr-5-and-state-emergency
https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/01/1.5.22-Bagley-Keene-waiver-EO.pdf
https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/01/1.5.22-Bagley-Keene-waiver-EO.pdf


   
 

Hybrid Meeting Policies for City Council Meetings 

Revised April 2022 
 

The policy below covers the conduct of hybrid City Council meetings (in-person and 

remote participation) held in accordance with the Government Code and any 

relevant Executive Orders or State declared emergencies.   
 
I. Vaccination Status 

Prior to entry, all in-person attendees at the meeting location must present 

valid proof of “up-to-date” COVID-19 vaccination or a verified negative test 

conducted within one day prior for an antigen test or two days prior for a PCR 

test. An attendee is “up-to-date” with their vaccinations if: 

• It has been less than 2 months after receiving the initial dose of their 

Johnson & Johnson Vaccine.  

• It has been less than 5 months after receiving the second dose of their 

two-dose Pfizer or Moderna initial series.  

• The attendee has received a booster.  

Pre-entry negative testing 

Definition: Testing must be conducted within one day for an antigen test and 
within two days for a PCR test prior to entry into an event. Results of the test 
must be available prior to entry into the facility or venue. Children under 2 
years of age are exempt from the testing requirement, consistent with CDC 
guidance. 

Verification: See current CDPH Updated Testing Guidance and CDPH Over-
the-Counter Testing Guidance for acceptable methods of proof of negative 
COVID-19 test result and information on Over-the-Counter tests. Note: Self-
attestation may not be used to verify negative test result, even when using 
Over-the-Counter (or at home tests) for entry into Indoor Mega Events. 
 
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Beyond-
Blueprint-Framework.aspx  

 

 

II. Health Status Precautions 

If a person who desires to attend the meeting in-person is feeling sick, 

including but not limited to, cough, shortness of breath or difficulty breathing, 

fever or chills, muscle or body aches, vomiting or diarrhea, or new loss of 

taste or smell they will be advised to attend the meeting remotely. 

 

Page 11 of 39

Page 81

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/international-travel-during-covid19.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/international-travel-during-covid19.html
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Updated-COVID-19-Testing-Guidance.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Over-The-Counter-Tests-LHJ-Guidance.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Over-The-Counter-Tests-LHJ-Guidance.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Beyond-Blueprint-Framework.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Beyond-Blueprint-Framework.aspx


   
 

If an in-person attendee has been in close contact, as defined below, with a 

person who has tested positive for COVID-19 in the past five days, they will 

be advised to attend the meeting remotely. 

 

Close contact is defined as being within approximately 6 feet for greater than 
15 minutes over 24 hours within 2 days before symptoms appear (or before a 
positive test for asymptomatic individuals); or having contact with COVID-19 
droplets (e.g., being coughed on while not wearing recommended personal 
protective equipment relative to employees’ duties and responsibilities).  
 
A voluntary sign in sheet will be available at the meeting entry for in-person 
attendees. This will assist with contact tracing in case of COVID contact 
resulting from the meeting. 
 
 

III. Face Coverings/Mask 

Following the State of California and Local Health Officer Guidance, face 

coverings or masks that cover both the nose and mouth are required for all 

attendees at an in-person City Council meeting. Face coverings will be 

provided by the City and available for attendees to use at the meeting. 

Members of the City Council, city staff, and the public are required to wear a 

mask at all times, including when speaking publicly at the meeting. 

 

If an attendee at a Council Meeting is not wearing a mask, a mask will be 

offered to them to use.  If the attendee refuses to wear a mask, a recess will 

be called in order to provide guidance to the attendee on the requirement and 

their options for attending remotely and in-person.  

 

Private security personnel will be the primary person for requesting 

compliance.  If removal of a non-compliant person is needed, law 

enforcement personnel will perform this task. 

 

 

IV. Physical Distancing 

Currently, there are no physical distancing requirements in place by the State 

of California or the Local Health Officer for an indoor event similar to a council 

meeting.   

 

Audience seating capacity will be at regular allowable levels per the Fire Code. 

However, all attendees are requested to be respectful of the personal space of 

other attendees.  An area of the public seating area will be designated as 

“distanced seating” to accommodate persons with a medical status that 

requires distancing and for those that choose to distance for personal health 

reasons. 

Page 12 of 39

Page 82



   
 

 

Conference room capacity is limited to 15 persons.  The relevant capacity 

limits will be posted at the meeting location. 

 

City staff will present remotely in order to reduce the number of persons in the 

Boardroom and back conference area. 

 

 

V. Protocols for Remote Participation by Mayor or Councilmembers 

Upon the repeal of the state-declared emergency, all standard Brown Act 

requirements will be in effect for members of the Council participating 

remotely. For the Mayor and Councilmembers participating remotely, the 

remote location must be accessible to the public and the public must be able 

to participate and give public comment from the remote location. 

• A Councilmember at a remote location will follow the same policies as 

the Boardroom with regards to vaccination status and testing 

requirements, health status precautions, and masking requirements.   

• A Councilmember at a remote location may impose reasonable 

capacity limits at their location. 

 

 

VI. Hand Washing/Sanitizing 

There are hand sanitizing stations placed at the entry and strategically 

throughout the Boardroom.  The bathrooms have soap and water for 

handwashing. 

 

 

VII. Air Flow/Circulation/Sanitizing 

BUSD Facilities Staff performs a vigorous cleaning process after each use of 

the Boardroom.  BUSD upgraded all HVAC filtration to MERV13, and with the 

inclusion of Needlepoint BiPolar Ionization, is achieving a rating that is closer 

to MERV18.  Additionally, BUSD installed indoor air quality monitoring 

sensors in all facilities that constantly monitor VOC's CO2, Relative Humidity, 

and Temperature.  The sensors and alarms allow BUSD to ensure that all 

systems are working properly and as designed.  If a sensor trips an alarm, a 

work order request is generated immediately to ensure the system is repaired 

expeditiously.  

 

 

VIII. Overflow in Gymnasium 

An overflow indoor seating area will be available at the West Campus 

Gymnasium for every meeting.   The capacity of the gymnasium is 200 

persons. The overflow area will have a broadcast of the meeting in progress 

Page 13 of 39

Page 83



   
 

to allow participants to follow the proceedings and move to the Boardroom at 

the appropriate time to provide public comment if desired.  The broadcast 

audio and video will be provided to attendees in the overflow area. This area 

will be monitored by the BUSD security personnel. 

 

 

IX. Food Provided for Elected Officials and Designated Staff 

- No buffet dinner provided. Box lunches only. Maximum of 16 (Mayor & 

Council [9], City Manager, City Attorney, City Clerk [2], Deputy City 

Managers [2], BCM Staff) 

- Individually packaged snacks will be provided on a common table and 

drinks will be available in the refrigerator. 

 
  

Page 14 of 39

Page 84



Hybrid Meeting Procedures for BUSD Boardroom (November 
2021February 2022)

The policy below covers the conduct of hybrid City Council meetings (in-person and 
remote participation) held in accordance with the Government Code and any 
relevant Executive Orders or State declared emergencies.  

I. Vaccination Status
Prior to entry, all in-person attendees at the meeting location must present 
valid proof of “up-to-date” COVID-19 vaccination or a verified negative test 
conducted within one day prior for an antigen test or two days prior for a PCR 
test. An attendee is “up-to-date” with their vaccinations if:

 It has been less than 2 months after receiving the initial dose of their 
Johnson & Johnson Vaccine. 

 It has been less than 5 months after receiving the second dose of their 
two-dose Pfizer or Moderna initial series. 

 The attendee has received a booster. 
No requirement for vaccination to attend a Council meeting.  Staff and 
Officials will not inquire about vaccination status for any attendees.

II. Health CheckStatus Precautions
If an in-person attendee is feeling sick, including but not limited to, cough, 
shortness of breath or difficulty breathing, fever or chills, muscle or body 
aches, vomiting or diarrhea, or new loss of taste or smell they will be advised 
to attend the meeting remotely.

If an in-person attendee has been in close contact, as defined below, with a 
person who has tested positive for COVID-19 in the past five days, they will 
be advised to attend the meeting remotely.

Close contact is defined as being within approximately 6 feet for greater than 
15 minutes over 24 hours within 2 days before symptoms appear (or before a 
positive test for asymptomatic individuals); or having contact with COVID-19 
droplets (e.g., being coughed on while not wearing recommended personal 
protective equipment relative to employees’ duties and responsibilities). 

A walk-up temperature check device will be located at the entry to the in-
person meeting location. All persons entering the in-person meeting location 
are required to perform a temperature check upon entering. A handheld non-
touch thermometer will be available for individuals with disabilities.  Private 
security personnel will be at the entry location for the duration of the meeting 
to monitor the temperature check station and mask requirement.

Attendees showing a fever will be directed to attend the meeting via remote 
participation (Zoom). If an attendee refuses to have their temperature 

Page 15 of 39

Page 85



Hybrid Meeting Procedures for BUSD Boardroom (November 
2021February 2022)

checked, guidance will be provided to the attendee on the requirement and 
their options for attending remotely and in-person.

Private security personnel will be the primary person for requesting 
compliance.  If removal of a non-compliant person is needed, law 
enforcement personnel will perform this task.

III. Face Coverings/Mask
Following the State of California and Local Health Officer Guidance, face 
coverings or masks that cover both the nose and mouth are required for all 
attendees at an in-person City Council meeting. Face coverings will be 
provided by the City and available for attendees to use at the meeting. 

If an attendee at a Council Meeting is not wearing a mask, a mask will be 
offered to them to use.  If the attendee refuses to wear a mask, a recess will 
be called in order to provide guidance to the attendee on the requirement and 
their options for attending remotely and in-person. 

Members of the City Council, city staff, and the public are required to wear a 
mask at all times, including when speaking publicly at the meeting.

Private security personnel will be the primary person for requesting 
compliance.  If removal of a non-compliant person is needed, law 
enforcement personnel will perform this task.

IV. Physical Distancing
Currently, there are no physical distancing requirements in place by the State 
of California or the Local Health Officer for an indoor event similar to a council 
meeting.  

Audience seating capacity will be at regular allowable levels per the Fire Code. 
However, all attendees are requested to be respectful of the personal space of 
other attendees.  An area of the public seating area will be designated as 
“distanced seating” to accommodate persons with a medical status that 
requires distancing and for those that choose to distance for personal health 
reasons.

Relevant CalOSHA requirements for the workplace will be followed as is 
feasible. Capacity in the audience seating area (including members of the 
media and staff) at the BUSD Boardroom is limited to 40 persons due to 

Page 16 of 39

Page 86



Hybrid Meeting Procedures for BUSD Boardroom (November 
2021February 2022)

uncertainty about vaccination status of attendees and limiting attendance at 
indoor events to ensure the comfort and safety of attendees.  Conference 
room capacity is limited to 12 15 persons.  The relevant capacity limits will be 
posted on the city council agenda and at the meeting location.

City staff will present remotely in order to reduce the number of persons in the 
Boardroom and back conference area.

V. Protocols for Remote Participation by Mayor or Councilmembers
Upon the repeal of the state-declared emergency, all standard Brown Act 
requirements will be in effect for members of the Council participating 
remotely. For the Mayor and Councilmembers participating remotely, the 
remote location must be accessible to the public and the public must be able 
to participate and give public comment from the remote location.

 A Councilmember at a remote location will follow the same policies as 
the Boardroom with regards to vaccination status and testing 
requirements, health status precautions,temperature checks, and 
masking requirements.  

 A Councilmember at a remote location may impose reasonable 
capacity limits at their location.

VI. Hand Washing/Sanitizing
There are hand sanitizing stations placed at the entry and strategically 
throughout the Boardroom.  The bathrooms have soap and water for 
handwashing.

VII. Air Flow/Circulation/Sanitizing
BUSD Facilities Staff performs a vigorous cleaning process after each use of 
the Boardroom.  BUSD upgraded all HVAC filtration to MERV13, and with the 
inclusion of Needlepoint BiPolar Ionization, is achieving a rating that is closer 
to MERV18.  Additionally, BUSD installed indoor air quality monitoring 
sensors in all facilities that constantly monitor VOC's CO2, Relative Humidity, 
and Temperature.  The sensors and alarms allow BUSD to ensure that all 
systems are working properly and as designed.  If a sensor trips an alarm, a 
work order request is generated immediately to ensure the system is repaired 
expeditiously. 

Page 17 of 39

Page 87



Hybrid Meeting Procedures for BUSD Boardroom (November 
2021February 2022)

VIII. Overflow in Gymnasium
An overflow indoor seating area will be available at the West Campus 
Gymnasium for every meeting.   The capacity of the gymnasium is 100 200 
persons. The overflow area will have a broadcast of the meeting in progress 
to allow participants to follow the proceedings and move to the Boardroom at 
the appropriate time to provide public comment if desired.  The broadcast 
audio and video will be provided to attendees in the overflow area. This area 
will be monitored by the BUSD security personnel.

IX. Food Provided for Elected Officials and Designated Staff
- No buffet dinner provided. 
- Box lunches only. Maximum of 16 (Mayor & Council [9], City Manager, 

City Attorney, City Clerk [2], Deputy City Managers [2], BCM Staff)
- Individually packaged snacks will be provided on a common table and 

drinks will be available in the refrigerator.

Page 18 of 39

Page 88



Hybrid Meeting Procedures for BUSD Boardroom (November 2021) 
 

The policy below covers the conduct of hybrid City Council meetings (in-person and 

remote participation) held in accordance with the Government Code and any 

relevant Executive Orders or State declared emergencies.   
 
I. Vaccination Status 

No requirement for vaccination to attend a Council meeting.  Staff and 

Officials will not inquire about vaccination status for any attendees. 

 

II. Health Check 

A walk-up temperature check device will be located at the entry to the in-

person meeting location. All persons entering the in-person meeting location 

are required to perform a temperature check upon entering. A handheld non-

touch thermometer will be available for individuals with disabilities.  Private 

security personnel will be at the entry location for the duration of the meeting 

to monitor the temperature check station and mask requirement. 

 

Attendees showing a fever will be directed to attend the meeting via remote 

participation (Zoom). If an attendee refuses to have their temperature 

checked, guidance will be provided to the attendee on the requirement and 

their options for attending remotely and in-person. 

 

Private security personnel will be the primary person for requesting 

compliance.  If removal of a non-compliant person is needed, law 

enforcement personnel will perform this task. 

 

III. Face Coverings/Mask 

Following the State of California and Local Health Officer Guidance, face 

coverings or masks that cover both the nose and mouth are required for all 

attendees at an in-person City Council meeting. Face coverings will be 

provided by the City and available for attendees to use at the meeting.  

 

If an attendee at a Council Meeting is not wearing a mask, a mask will be 

offered to them to use.  If the attendee refuses to wear a mask, a recess will 

be called in order to provide guidance to the attendee on the requirement and 

their options for attending remotely and in-person.  

 

Members of the City Council, city staff, and the public are required to wear a 

mask at all times, including when speaking publicly at the meeting. 

 

Private security personnel will be the primary person for requesting 

compliance.  If removal of a non-compliant person is needed, law 

enforcement personnel will perform this task. 

 

Page 19 of 39

Page 89



Hybrid Meeting Procedures for BUSD Boardroom (November 2021) 
 

IV. Physical Distancing 

Currently, there are no physical distancing requirements in place by the State 

of California or the Local Health Officer for an indoor event similar to a council 

meeting.  Relevant CalOSHA requirements for the workplace will be followed 

as is feasible. Capacity in the audience seating area (including members of 

the media and staff) at the BUSD Boardroom is limited to 40 persons due to 

uncertainty about vaccination status of attendees and limiting attendance at 

indoor events to ensure the comfort and safety of attendees.  Conference 

room capacity is limited to 12 persons.  The relevant capacity limits will be 

posted on the city council agenda and at the meeting location. 

 

V. Protocols for Remote Participation by Mayor or Councilmembers 

Upon the repeal of the state-declared emergency, all standard Brown Act 

requirements will be in effect for members of the Council participating 

remotely. For the Mayor and Councilmembers participating remotely, the 

remote location must be accessible to the public and the public must be able 

to participate and give public comment from the remote location. 

• A Councilmember at a remote location will follow the same policies as 

the Boardroom with regards to vaccination status, temperature checks, 

and mask requirements.   

• A Councilmember at a remote location may impose reasonable 

capacity limits at their location. 

 

VI. Hand Washing/Sanitizing 

There are hand sanitizing stations placed at the entry and strategically 

throughout the Boardroom.  The bathrooms have soap and water for 

handwashing. 

 

VII. Air Flow/Circulation/Sanitizing 

BUSD Facilities Staff performs a vigorous cleaning process after each use of 

the Boardroom.  BUSD upgraded all HVAC filtration to MERV13, and with the 

inclusion of Needlepoint BiPolar Ionization, is achieving a rating that is closer 

to MERV18.  Additionally, BUSD installed indoor air quality monitoring 

sensors in all facilities that constantly monitor VOC's CO2, Relative Humidity, 

and Temperature.  The sensors and alarms allow BUSD to ensure that all 

systems are working properly and as designed.  If a sensor trips an alarm, a 

work order request is generated immediately to ensure the system is repaired 

expeditiously.  

 

VIII. Overflow in Gymnasium 

An overflow indoor seating area will be available at the West Campus 

Gymnasium for every meeting.   The capacity of the gymnasium is 100 

persons. The overflow area will have a broadcast of the meeting in progress 

Page 20 of 39

Page 90



Hybrid Meeting Procedures for BUSD Boardroom (November 2021) 
 

to allow participants to follow the proceedings and move to the Boardroom at 

the appropriate time to provide public comment if desired.  The broadcast 

audio and video will be provided to attendees in the overflow area. This area 

will be monitored by the BUSD security personnel. 

 

IX. Food Provided for Elected Officials and Designated Staff 

- No buffet dinner provided.  

- Box lunches only. Total of 18 (Mayor & Council [9], City Manager, City 

Attorney, City Clerk [2], Deputy City Managers [2], BCM Staff, Extras [2]) 

- Individually packaged snacks will be provided on a common table and 

drinks will be available in the refrigerator. 

Page 21 of 39

Page 91



 URGENT ITEM 
AGENDA MATERIAL 

Government Code Section 54954.2(b)  
Rules of Procedure Chapter III.C.5 

 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099 
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager 

 
 

THIS ITEM IS NOT YET AGENDIZED AND MAY OR MAY NOT BE 
ACCEPTED FOR THE AGENDA AS A LATE ITEM, SUBJECT TO THE 

CITY COUNCIL’S DISCRETION ACCORDING TO BROWN ACT RULES 
 
Meeting Date:   September 28, 2021 
 
Item Description:   Resolution Making Required Findings Pursuant to the 

Government Code and Directing City Legislative Bodies to 
Continue to Meet Via Videoconference and Teleconference 

 
This item is submitted pursuant to the provision checked below: 
 
     Emergency Situation (54954.2(b)(1) - majority vote required) 

Determination by a majority vote of the legislative body that an emergency situation exists, as    
defined in Section 54956.5. 

 
     Immediate Action Required (54954.2(b)(2) - two-thirds vote required) 

There is a need to take immediate action and the need for action came to the attention of the local 
agency subsequent to the agenda for this meeting being posted. 

 
Once the item is added to the agenda (Consent or Action) it must be passed by the standard required 

vote threshold (majority, two-thirds, or 7/9). 

 

Facts supporting the addition of the item to the agenda under Section 54954.2(b) 
and Chapter III.C.5 of the Rules of Procedure: 
 
Assembly Bill 361 (Rivas) was signed by the Governor on September 16, 2021.  This 
bill allows local legislative bodies to meet using videoconference technology while 
maintaining the Brown Act exemptions in Executive Order N-29-20 for noticing and 
access to the locations from which local officials participate in the meeting. Local 
agencies may only meet with the exemption if there is a state declared emergency. 
 
The bill also requires that local legislative bodies meeting only via videoconference 
under a state declared emergency to make certain findings every 30-days regarding 
the need to meet in a virtual-only setting. 
 
The agenda for the September 28, 2021 was finalized and published prior to the 
Governor signing AB 361 in to law.  Thus, the need to take action came to the attention 
of the local agency after the agenda was distributed.  This item qualifies for addition to 
the agenda with a two-thirds vote of the Council under Government Code Section 
54954.2(b)(2). 

X 

Page 22 of 39

Page 92

mailto:manager@CityofBerkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager


 
 

 
Office of the City Attorney 

   CONSENT CALENDAR 
September 28, 2021 

 
To:       Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
       Madame City Manager 
 
From:       Farimah Faiz Brown, City Attorney 
 
Subject:              Resolution Making Required Findings Pursuant to the Government 

Code and Directing City Legislative Bodies to Continue to Meet Via 
Videoconference and Teleconference  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt a resolution making the required findings pursuant to Government Code Section 
54953(e)(3) and determining that as a result of the continued threat to public health and 
safety posed by the spread of COVID-19, City legislative bodies shall continue to meet 
via videoconference and teleconference.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT OF RECOMMENDATION 
To be determined. 
 
CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
Pursuant to California Government Code section 8630 and Berkeley Municipal Code 
Chapter 2.88.040, on March 3, 2020, the City Manager, in her capacity as Director of 
Emergency Services, proclaimed a local emergency due to conditions of extreme peril 
to the safety of persons and property within the City as a consequence of the global 
spread of a severe acute respiratory illness caused by a novel (new) coronavirus 
(COVID-19), including a confirmed case in the City of Berkeley.  As a result of multiple 
confirmed and presumed cases in Alameda County, the County has declared a local 
health emergency.  On March 4, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom issued a Proclamation 
of a State of Emergency due to the spread of COVID-19.  On March 10, 2020, the City 
Council ratified the Proclamation of Local Emergency with the passage of Resolution 
No. 69-312.   
 
On March 17, 2020, Governor Newsom signed Executive Order N-29-20, which 
suspended certain portions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code § 54950 et seq.) 
related to the holding of teleconferenced meetings by City legislative bodies.  Among 
other things, Executive Order N-29-20 suspended requirements that each location from 
which an official accesses a teleconferenced meeting be accessible to the public.  

Page 23 of 39

Page 93



 
 

These changes were necessary to allow teleconferencing to be used as a tool for 
ensuring social distancing.  City legislative bodies have held public meetings via 
videoconference and teleconference pursuant to these provisions since March 2020.  
These provisions of Executive Order N-29-20 will expire on September 30, 2021.     
 
COVID-19 continues to pose a serious threat to public health and safety. There are now 
over 4,700 confirmed cases of COVID-19 and at least 55 deaths in the City of Berkeley.  
Additionally, the SARS-CoV-2 B.1.617.2 (“Delta”) variant of COVID-19 that is currently 
circulating nationally and within the City is contributing to a substantial increase in 
transmissibility and more severe disease. 
 
As a result of the continued threat to public health posed by the spread of COVID-19, 
state and local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to promote social 
distancing, mask wearing and vaccination.  Holding meetings of City legislative bodies 
in person would present imminent risks to the health and safety of the public and 
members of legislative bodies, and therefore public meetings cannot safely be held in 
person at this time 
 
Assembly Bill 361 (Rivas), signed into law by Governor Newsom on September 16, 
2021, amended a portion of the Brown Act (Government Code Section 54953) to 
authorize the City Council, during the state of emergency, to determine that, due to the 
spread of COVID-19, holding in-person public meetings would present an imminent risk 
to the health or safety of attendees, and therefore City legislative bodies must continue 
to meet via videoconference and teleconference.  Assembly Bill 361 requires that the 
City Council must review and ratify such a determination every thirty (30) days.  
Therefore, if the Council passes this resolution on September 28, 2021, the Council will 
need to review and ratify the resolution by October 28, 2021.   
 
This item requests that the Council review the circumstances of the continued state of 
emergency posed by the spread of COVID-19, and find that the state of emergency 
continues to directly impact the ability of the public and members of City legislative 
bodies to meet safely in person, that holding public meetings of City legislative bodies in 
person would present imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees, and that 
state and local officials continue to promote social distancing, mask wearing and 
vaccination.  This item further requests that the Council determine that City legislative 
bodies, including but not limited to the City Council and its committees, and all 
commissions and boards, shall continue to hold public meetings via videoconference 
and teleconference, and that City legislative bodies shall continue to comply with all 
provisions of the Brown Act, as amended by SB 361.  
 
BACKGROUND 
On March 1, 2020, Alameda County Public Health Department and Solano County 
Public Health Department reported two presumptive cases of COVID-19, pending 
confirmatory testing by the Centers for Disease Control (CDC), prompting Alameda 
County to declare a local health emergency. 
 

Page 24 of 39

Page 94



 
 

On March 3, 2020, the City’s Director of Emergency Services proclaimed a local 
emergency due to the spread of COVID-19, including a confirmed case in the City of 
Berkeley and multiple confirmed and presumed cases in Alameda County. 
 
On March 4, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom issued a Proclamation of a State of 
Emergency due to the spread of COVID-19. 
 
On March 10, 2020, the City Council ratified the Proclamation of Local Emergency. 
Since that date, there have been over 4,700 confirmed cases of COVID-19 and at least 
57 deaths in the City of Berkeley. 
 
On March 17, 2020, Governor Newsom signed Executive Order N-29-20 which 
suspended certain portions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code § 54950 et seq.) 
to allow teleconferencing of public meetings to be used as a tool for ensuring social 
distancing.  As a result, City legislative bodies have held public meetings via 
teleconference throughout the pandemic.  The provisions of Executive Order N-29-20 
allowing teleconferencing to be used as a tool for social distancing will expire on 
September 30, 2021.   
 
ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS 
Not applicable. 
 
RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The Resolution would enable the City Council and its committees, and City boards and 
commissions to continue to hold public meetings via videoconference and 
teleconference in order to continue to socially distance and limit the spread of COVID-
19. 
 
ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED 
None. 
 
CONTACT PERSON 
Farimah Brown, City Attorney, City Attorney’s Office (510) 981-6998 
Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6908 
 
 
Attachments: 
1: Resolution Directing City Legislative Bodies to Continue to Meet Via Videoconference 
and Teleconference 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25 of 39

Page 95



 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  –N.S. 
 

RESOLUTION MAKING THE REQUIRED FINDINGS PURSUANT TO GOVERNEMNT 
CODE SECTION 54953(E)(3) AND DIRECTING CITY LEGISLATIVE BODIES TO 

CONTINUE TO MEET VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Berkeley Municipal Code section 2.88.040 and sections 
8558(c) and 8630 of the Government Code, which authorize the proclamation of a local 
emergency when conditions of disaster or extreme peril to the safety of persons and 
property within the territorial limits of a City exist, the City Manager, serving as the 
Director of Emergency Services, beginning on March 3, 2020, did proclaim the 
existence of a local emergency caused by epidemic in the form of the global spread of a 
severe acute respiratory illness caused by a novel (new) coronavirus (“COVID-19”), 
including confirmed cases in California and the San Francisco Bay Area, and presumed 
cases in Alameda County prompting the County to declare a local health emergency; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, on March 10, 2020, the City Council ratified the Proclamation of Local 
Emergency with the passage of Resolution No. 69-312; and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom issued a Proclamation of a 
State of Emergency pursuant to the California Emergency Services Act, in particular, 
Government Code section 8625; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Proclamation of a State of Emergency issued by Governor Newsom on 
March 4, 2020 continues to be in effect; and  
 
WHEREAS, on September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed into law AB 361, which 
authorizes the City Council to determine that, due to the continued threat to public 
health and safety posed by the spread of COVID-19, City legislative bodies shall 
continue to meet via videoconference and teleconference; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council does find that the aforesaid conditions of extreme peril 
continue to exist, and now include over 4,700 confirmed cases of COVID-19 and at 
least 55 deaths in the City of Berkeley; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes that the SARS-CoV-2 B.1.617.2 (“Delta”) 
variant of COVID-19 that is currently circulating nationally and within the City is 
contributing to a substantial increase in transmissibility and more severe disease; and 
 
WHEREAS, as a result of the continued threat to public health posed by the spread of 
COVID-19, state and local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to 
promote social distancing, mask wearing and vaccination; and  
 

Page 26 of 39

Page 96



 
 

WHEREAS, holding meetings of City legislative bodies in person would present 
imminent risks to the health and safety of the public and members of legislative bodies, 
and therefore public meetings cannot safely be held in person at this time; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council will need to again review the need for the continuing 
necessity of holding City legislative body meetings via videoconference and 
teleconference by October 28, 2021.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that, 
pursuant to Government Code section 54953, the City Council has reviewed the 
circumstances of the continued state of emergency posed by the spread of COVID-19, 
and finds that the state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the public 
and members of City legislative bodies to meet safely in person, that holding public 
meetings of City legislative bodies in person would present imminent risks to the health 
and safety of attendees, and that state and local officials continue to promote social 
distancing, mask wearing and vaccination; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that City legislative bodies, including but not limited to the 
City Council and its committees, and all commissions and boards, shall continue to hold 
public meetings via videoconference and teleconference; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all City legislative bodies shall comply with the 
requirements of Government Code section 54953(e)(2) and all applicable laws, 
regulations and rules when conducting public meetings pursuant to this resolution. 
 
 
  

Page 27 of 39

Page 97



GOVERNOR GAVIN NEWSOM • SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95814 • (916) 445-2841 

 

O F F I C E  O F  T H E  G O V E R N O R
 
 
 

June 2, 2021 
 
 
VIA EMAIL 
 
Graham Knaus, Executive Director 
CA State Assoc. of Counties 
gknaus@counties.org 
 

Jean Kinney Hurst, Legislative Advocate 
Urban Counties of CA 
jhurst@counties.org  

Carolyn Coleman, Executive Director 
League of CA Cities 
ccoleman@cacities.org 

Laura Preston, Legislative Advocate 
Assoc. of CA School Administrators 
lpreston@acsa.org 
 

Staci Heaton, Acting Vice President of 
Government Affairs 
Rural County Representatives of CA 
sheaton@rcrcnet.org 

Amber King, Vice President, Advocacy 
and Membership 
Assoc. of CA Healthcare Districts 
amber.king@achd.org 
 

Pamela Miller, Executive Director 
CA Assoc. of Local Agency Formation 
Commissions 
pmiller@calafco.org 
 

Danielle Blacet-Hyden, Deputy Executive 
Director 
CA Municipal Utilities Assoc. 
dblacet@cmua.org 

Niel McCormick, Chief Executive Officer 
CA Special Districts Assoc. 
neilm@csda.net 

Kristopher M. Anderson, Esq., Legislative 
Advocate 
Assoc. of CA Water Agencies 
krisa@acwa.com 

 
RE: Transition Period Prior to Repeal of COVID-related Executive Orders 
 
 
Dear Mr. Knaus, Ms. Miller, Ms. Hurst, Ms. Preston, Ms. Heaton, Ms. King, Ms. Coleman, 
Ms. Blacet-Hyden, Mr. McCormick, Mr. Anderson, and colleagues, 
 
Thank you for your correspondence of May 18, 2021, inquiring what impact the 
anticipated June 15 termination of the Blueprint for a Safer Economy will have on 
Executive Order N-29-20, which provided flexibility to state and local agencies and 
boards to conduct their business through virtual public meetings during the COVID-19 
pandemic. 
 

Page 28 of 39

Page 98

mailto:jhurst@counties.org
mailto:lpreston@acsa.org
mailto:amber.king@achd.org
mailto:pmiller@calafco.org


 

Please be assured that this Executive Order Provision will not terminate on June 15 when 
the Blueprint is scheduled to terminate. While the Governor intends to terminate COVID-
19 executive orders at the earliest possible date at which conditions warrant, consistent 
with the Emergency Services Act, the Governor recognizes the importance of an 
orderly return to the ordinary conduct of public meetings of state and local agencies 
and boards. To this end, the Governor’s office will work to provide notice to affected 
stakeholders in advance of rescission of this provision to provide state and local 
agencies and boards time necessary to meet statutory and logistical requirements. Until 
a further order issues, all entities may continue to rely on N-29-20. 
 
We appreciate your partnership throughout the pandemic. 
 
 
Regards,  
 
 
 
 
Ana Matosantos 
Cabinet Secretary 

 

Page 29 of 39

Page 99



6/10/2021 Standards Board Readopts Revised Cal/OSHA COVID-19 Prevention Emergency Temporary Standards

https://www.dir.ca.gov/DIRNews/2021/2021-58.html 1

Release
Number:  2021-58

June 4, 2021

Press Room News Releases DIR News Release

N E W S  R E L E A S E

Standards Board Readopts Revised Cal/OSHA COVID-19
Prevention Emergency Temporary Standards

The revised Cal/OSHA standards are expected to go into effect no
later than June 15

Sacramento — The Occupational Safety and Health Standards Board on June 3
readopted Cal/OSHA’s revised COVID-19 prevention emergency temporary
standards.  

Last year, the Board adopted health and safety standards to protect workers from
COVID-19. The standards did not consider vaccinations and required testing,
quarantining, masking and more to protect workers from COVID-19.  

The changes adopted by the Board phase out physical distancing and make other
adjustments to better align with the state’s June 15 goal to retire the Blueprint.
Without these changes, the original standards, would be in place until at least
October 2. These restrictions are no longer required given today’s record low case
rates and the fact that we’ve administered 37 million vaccines.  

The revised emergency standards are expected to go into e�ect no later than June
15 if approved by the O�ice of Administrative Law in the next 10 calendar days.
Some provisions go into e�ect starting on July 31, 2021.  

The revised standards are the first update to Cal/OSHA’s temporary COVID-19
prevention requirements adopted in November 2020.  

The Board may further refine the regulations in the coming weeks to take into
account changes in circumstances, especially as related to the availability of
vaccines and low case rates across the state.

The standards apply to most workers in California not covered by Cal/OSHA’s
Aerosol Transmissible Diseases standard. Notable revisions include:  

Face Coverings:

Indoors, fully vaccinated workers without COVID-19 symptoms do not
need to wear face coverings in a room where everyone else is fully
vaccinated and not showing symptoms. However, where there is a
mixture of vaccinated and unvaccinated persons in a room, all workers
will continue to be required to wear a face covering.

Outdoors, fully vaccinated workers without symptoms do not need to
wear face coverings. However, outdoor workers who are not fully
vaccinated must continue to wear a face covering when they are less
than six feet away from another person.

Physical Distancing: When the revised standards take e�ect, employers can
eliminate physical distancing and partitions/barriers for employees working
indoors and at outdoor mega events if they provide respirators, such as N95s,
to unvaccinated employees for voluntary use. A�er July 31, physical distancing

Page 30 of 39

Page 100

https://www.dir.ca.gov/mediaroom.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dirnews/link_page.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/oshsb/documents/Jun032021-COVID-19-Prevention-Emergency-txtcourtesy-Readoption.pdf
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/5199.html


6/10/2021 Standards Board Readopts Revised Cal/OSHA COVID-19 Prevention Emergency Temporary Standards

https://www.dir.ca.gov/DIRNews/2021/2021-58.html 2

and barriers are no longer required (except during outbreaks), but employers
must provide all unvaccinated employees with N95s for voluntary use.

Prevention Program: Employers are still required to maintain a written COVID-
19 Prevention Program but there are some key changes to requirements:

Employers must review the California Department of Public Health’s
Interim guidance for Ventilation, Filtration, and Air Quality in Indoor
Environments.

COVID-19 prevention training must now include information on how the
vaccine is e�ective at preventing COVID-19 and protecting against both
transmission and serious illness or death.

Exclusion from the Workplace: Fully vaccinated workers who do not have
COVID-19 symptoms no longer need to be excluded from the workplace a�er a
close contact.

Special Protections for Housing and Transportation: Special COVID-19
prevention measures that apply to employer-provided housing and
transportation no longer apply if all occupants are fully vaccinated.   

The Standards Board will file the readoption rulemaking package with the O�ice of
Administrative Law, which has 10 calendar days to review and approve the
temporary workplace safety standards enforced by Cal/OSHA. Once approved and
published, the full text of the revised emergency standards will appear in the Title 8
sections 3205 (COVID-19 Prevention), 3205.1 (Multiple COVID-19 Infections and
COVID-19 Outbreaks), 3205.2 (Major COVID-19 Outbreaks) 3205.3 (COVID-19
Prevention in Employer-Provided Housing) and 3205.4 (COVID-19 Prevention in
Employer-Provided Transportation) of the California Code of Regulations. Pursuant
to the state’s emergency rulemaking process, this is the first of two opportunities to
readopt the temporary standards a�er the initial e�ective period. 

The Standards Board also convened a representative subcommittee to work with
Cal/OSHA on a proposal for further updates to the standard, as part of the
emergency rulemaking process.  It is anticipated this newest proposal, once
developed, will be heard at an upcoming Board meeting. The subcommittee will
provide regular updates at the Standards Board monthly meetings.  

The Occupational Safety and Health Standards Board, a seven-member body
appointed by the Governor, is the standards-setting agency within the Cal/OSHA
program. The Standards Board's objective is to adopt reasonable and enforceable
standards at least as e�ective as federal standards. The Standards Board also has
the responsibility to grant or deny applications for permanent variances from
adopted standards and respond to petitions for new or revised standards. 

The California Division of Occupational Safety and Health, or Cal/OSHA, is the
division within the Department of Industrial Relations that helps protect California’s
workers from health and safety hazards on the job in almost every workplace.
Cal/OSHA’s Consultation Services Branch provides free and voluntary assistance to
employers to improve their health and safety programs. Employers should call (800)
963-9424 for assistance from Cal/OSHA Consultation Services. 

Contact: Erika Monterroza / Frank Polizzi, Communications@dir.ca.gov, (510) 286-
1161.

The California Department of Industrial Relations, established in 1927, protects and improves
the health, safety, and economic well-being of over 18 million wage earners, and helps their
employers comply with state labor laws. DIR is housed within the Labor & Workforce
Development Agency

Page 31 of 39

Page 101

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Interim-Guidance-for-Ventilation-Filtration-and-Air-Quality-in-Indoor-Environments.aspx
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205_1.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205_2.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205_3.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205_4.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/samples/search/query.htm
https://oal.ca.gov/emergency_regulations/
https://www.dir.ca.gov/oshsb/oshsb.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/consultation.html
mailto:Communications@dir.ca.gov
https://www.dir.ca.gov/
https://www.labor.ca.gov/


 

Office of the City Manager 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099 

E-Mail: manager@cityofberkeley.info  Website: http://www.cityofberkeley.info/manager 

G:\CLERK\AGENDA\Admin\VIDEOSTREAMING - GRANICUS - ZOOM\ZOOM\Memo - Agenda & Rules City Meetings 6-1-
21_v2.docx 

June 1, 2021 
 
 
To: Agenda & Rules Committee 
 
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager 
 
Subject: Preliminary Analysis of Return to In-Person Meetings of City Legislative 

Bodies 
 

 
Introduction 
This memo responds to the request from the Agenda & Rules Committee on May 17, 
2021 for information from the City Manager on the options and timing for a return to in-
person meetings for City legislative bodies.  The analysis below is a preliminary 
summary of the considerations and options for returning to in-person meetings. 
 
With the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic, the shelter-in-place order, and the issuance 
of Executive Order N-29-20 (“Executive Order”) in the spring of 2020, the City quickly 
adjusted to a virtual meeting model.  Now, almost 15 months later, with the Blueprint for 
a Safer Economy scheduled to sunset on June 15, 2021, the City is faced with a new 
set of conditions that will impact how public meetings may be held in Berkeley.  While 
the June 15, 2021 date appears to be certain, there is still a great deal of uncertainty 
about the fate of the Executive Order.  In addition, the City is still awaiting concrete, 
specific guidance from the State with regards to regulations that govern public meetings 
and public health recommendations that will be in place after June 15, 2021. 
 
For background, Executive Order N-29-20 allows legislative bodies to meet in a virtual 
setting and suspends the following Brown Act requirements: 
 

• Printing the location of members of the legislative body on the agenda; 

• Posting the agenda at the location of members of the legislative body that are 

remote; and 

• Making publicly available remote locations from which members of the legislative 

body participate. 

 
 
 
 

Page 32 of 39

Page 102

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/manager


Preliminary Analysis of Return to In-Person Meetings June 1, 2021 
of City Legislative Bodies 

Page 2 

Meeting Options 
There are three groups of City Legislative bodies that are considered in this memo  

 

• City Council;  

• City Council Policy Committees; and  

• Boards and Commissions.   

The three meeting models available are: 
 

• In-person only;  

• Virtual only; or  

• Hybrid (in-person and virtual).   

 
The scenarios below show the options available for each given set of facts. 
 

Summary Recommendations of Meeting Options 
    

  Physical Distancing No Physical Distancing 

    In-Person Hybrid Virtual* In-Person Hybrid Virtual* 

        

City Council  X X X X X X 

        

Policy Committees    X X  X 

        
Board and Commissions   X X  X 

      
* The ability to hold virtual-only meetings is dependent on the status of Executive Order N-29-20 

 
Currently, the Centers for Disease Control recommends physical distancing for 
unvaccinated persons.  While the City and the community have made tremendous 
progress with regards to vaccination, the City would use the guidelines for unvaccinated 
persons when making determinations regarding public meetings. 
 
Meeting Type Considerations 
Our previous experience pre-pandemic and our experience over the past 15 months 
demonstrates that the City can conduct all in-person and all virtual meetings. However, 
the possibility of hybrid meetings presents new questions to consider. The primary 
concern for a return to in-person meetings using a hybrid model is the impact on the 
public experience and the legislative process. 
 

Will the legislative body be able to provide a transparent, coherent, stable, 
informative, and meaningful experience for the both the public in attendance and 
virtually? 
 

Page 33 of 39

Page 103



Preliminary Analysis of Return to In-Person Meetings June 1, 2021 
of City Legislative Bodies 

Page 3 

Will the legislative body be able to conduct the legislative process in an efficient, 
coherent, and meaningful manner with the members split between in-person and 
virtual, and considering the additional delays and logistical challenges of allowing 
for public participation in a hybrid model? 

 
For the City Council, testing has shown that the larger space and technology 
infrastructure at the Boardroom will allow the Council to conduct all three types of 
meetings (in-person, hybrid, virtual). 
 
For Policy Committees and Commissions, only the “all virtual” or “all in-person” 
meetings are recommended. Preliminary testing has shown that the audio/visual 
limitations of the meeting rooms available for these bodies would result in inefficient and 
cumbersome management of the proceedings in a hybrid model. In addition, there are 
considerations to analyze regarding the available bandwidth in city facilities and all 
members having access to adequate devices.  Continuing the all virtual model for as 
long as possible, then switching to an all in-person model when conditions permit 
provides the best access, participation, and legislative experience for the public and the 
legislative body.  
 
Other Considerations 
Some additional factors to consider in the evaluation of returning to in-person or hybrid 
meetings are:  

• How to address vaccination status for in-person attendees. 

• Will symptom checks and/or temperature checks at entry points be required?  

• Who is responsible for providing PPE for attendees? 

• How are protocols for in-person attendees to be enforced? 

• Physical distancing measures for the Mayor and City Councilmembers on the 

dais. 

• Installation of physical barriers and other temporary measures.  

• Will the podium and microphone need to be sanitized after every speaker? 

• High number of touch points in meeting rooms. 

• Will chairs for the public and staff need to be sanitized if there is turnover during 

the meeting? 

• Determining the appropriate capacity for meeting locations. 

• The condition and capacity of meeting room ventilation system and air cycling 

abilities. 

• How to receive and share Supplemental Items, Revisions, Urgent Items, and 

submissions by the public both in-person and virtually.   

• Budget including costs for equipment, physical improvements, A/V, PPE, and 

sanitization. 

 
 
 

Page 34 of 39

Page 104



Preliminary Analysis of Return to In-Person Meetings June 1, 2021 
of City Legislative Bodies 

Page 4 

Conclusion 
As stated above, conditions are changing daily, and there is a high degree of 
uncertainty surrounding the future guidance, regulations, and actions at the state level.   
Planning, testing and analysis are already underway to prepare for an eventual return to 
in-person meetings. Staff will continue to monitor the evolving legislative and public 
health circumstances and advise the committee at future meetings.   
 
Attachment: 
 

1. Executive Order N-29-20 

Page 35 of 39

Page 105



Page 36 of 39

Page 106



Page 37 of 39

Page 107



Page 38 of 39

Page 108



Page 39 of 39

Page 109



Page 110


	05-31 Agenda - Agenda Committee
	05-16 Minutes - Agenda Committee
	Draft 2022-06-14 Agenda - Council
	Draft Item 23 Call for Immediate Ukraine Ceasefire
	Draft Item 24 Support for SB 1389  Low-Level Vehicle
	Draft Item 27 Parking Enforcement of Existing
	Draft Item 28 Recommendation that the City
	Draft Item 32 City Auditor’s Office 2021 Peer
	Item 05 Upcoming Workshops
	Item 06 Council Referrals
	Item 07 Land Use Calendar
	Item 08 Discussion Regarding Impact
	Item 09 Preliminary Analysis of Return to In-Person Meetings



